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                   KEVIN KONARSKA (unknown last name):  Welcome to today's  1 

         event, to today's hearing.  It's wonderful to see so many people  2 

         in the audience.  It's obvious if you're here you care about 3 

         kids, and you're very interested and want to help solve a 4 

         problem that we've been dealing with for quite some time, 5 

         and that's recognizing that we need every student to be 6 

         successful in our schools.  And we have to make sure that we 7 

         reduce the number of dropouts that are occurring not only in 8 

         our West Michigan area, but across the state.   9 

                      The Kent Intermediate School District, along with 10 

         a number of other educational partners -- and I'd like to 11 

         recognize them at this time -- the MEA, the MAISA, which is 12 

         the Intermediate School District organization of School 13 

         Administrators, Michigan Children's, Michigan Promise, 14 

         Michigan Charter Schools, Michigan's Future, Incorporated, 15 

         along with Kent ISD are all partnering in working together 16 

         and collaborating on gathering information in dealing with 17 

         this problem collectively and together.  And we're very, 18 

         very pleased to be part of that partnership. 19 

                      Today you have an opportunity to hear about good 20 

         work that's taking place in West Michigan to assure the 21 

         success of every child.  But we also have a distinguished 22 

         group of panelists here that in taking in this information 23 

         will have an opportunity to ask questions.  You'll also have 24 

         an opportunity to provide input, suggestions as well, in 25 
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         regards to this problem and the issue that we're dealing 1 

         with across the State of Michigan, you know.  This just 2 

         isn't an issue dealing with our schools and education.  And 3 

         when we collaborate and work together and recognize that 4 

         it's much broader than that.  It's all of us collectively, 5 

         our social services agencies, our foundation, our community 6 

         leaders working together on behalf of kids.  And I think 7 

         with this collaborative effort great things can happen. 8 

                      I'd like to take a minute and introduce the 9 

         panelists who are joining me this afternoon.  Susan Broman 10 

         (phonetic) from Steelcase Foundation; Dan Quisenberry from 11 

         the Charter School Association.  I'm going to go right down 12 

         the list here.  Michele Corey from Michigan's Children; and 13 

         Iris Salters from Michigan Education Association; Laura 14 

         Marsh from the Juvenile Court; Phil Rios (phonetic).  And 15 

         Phil is from West Michigan Strategic Alliance.  Let's see.  16 

         Who else?  Mark Thomas, high school principal of the 17 

         Northview Public Schools; and then Jan Alex (phonetic) from 18 

         the Michigan Department of Education is at the end. 19 

                      Thank you very much for joining us today.  And I 20 

         believe there's a lot of good information to share and 21 

         certainly ask questions as we deal with this issue together.  22 

         And I want to again welcome all of you and turn the podium 23 

         to the communications director for the MEA, Mr. Doug Pratt. 24 

                      MR. PRATT:  We're going to kick it to Iris. 25 
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                   MR. KONARSKA (unknown last name):  Oh, we're going to 1 

         kick it to Iris.  Okay.  We'll turn it over to Iris. 2 

                      MS. SALTERS:  Well, thanks, Kevin.  And thank you 3 

         to each one of you for taking the time out of your busy 4 

         schedules to join us today to talk about a crisis that has a 5 

         direct impact on each and every one of us.  You may have 6 

         heard that about 20,000 Michigan students drop out of school 7 

         each and every year.  The impact of this crisis on our 8 

         society is huge, including lower incomes for our dropouts, 9 

         local communities with fewer well-paid employees who support 10 

         those local businesses, and an economy saddled with the 11 

         perception that we lack qualified employees for perspective 12 

         jobs.  It also costs taxpayers about $127,000 per dropout in 13 

         lost tax revenues and increased public health, crime and 14 

         welfare demands.  The numbers of our youths who are leaving 15 

         school without a diploma and their impact on our state is 16 

         staggering.   17 

                      We are here today to act, because one dropout is 18 

         way too many.  The dropout crisis is certainly a complicated 19 

         problem.  No one strategy or reform model will work for all 20 

         schools or all students.  But we shouldn't back down from 21 

         trying to fix the problem or delay acting because it's too 22 

         hard to solve.  That's why all of us as partners in this 23 

         effort want to hear your stories why students drop out, what 24 

         impact that has on your community, why students return to 25 
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         school, what works and, frankly, what doesn't work.  We will 1 

         present your stories and findings of these hearings to the 2 

         political leaders and the public at the Michigan Dropout 3 

         Prevention Leadership Summit on October 20th in Lansing.  4 

         The information we gather through these hearings will inform 5 

         our leaders about how to develop the broad-based solutions 6 

         necessary to graduate more students from high school who are 7 

         ready to work move on into college or some form of training 8 

         and be an active participant in our economy and society.  9 

         It's a huge task ahead of us.  Doug? 10 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you, Madam President.  My name 11 

         is Doug Pratt.  I'm the communications director for the 12 

         Michigan Education Association.  And I'm going to serve as 13 

         the moderator today.  My role is just to keep the 14 

         conversation going today.  We have several presenters who 15 

         were scheduled to testify in advance, and we're going to 16 

         call them up one at a time to the podium to testify.  When 17 

         you're testifying, please speak clearly into the 18 

         microphones.  We are recording this to present it to the 19 

         legislature.  We are going to transcribe all the testimony 20 

         we receive at all ten hearings across the state.  The 21 

         panelists, after the presentations, may need to ask a few 22 

         clarifying questions.  And just signal me and we can get 23 

         through that.  But we also need to make sure we keep this 24 

         going and give everybody here an opportunity to speak.  So I 25 
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         am going to try to keep the conversation moving.  When we're 1 

         finished with those who were scheduled to testify, we will 2 

         begin opening up the testimony from the rest of you in the 3 

         audience.  If you haven't already, if you're interested in 4 

         testifying, there are speaker cards outside.  I believe 5 

         there are some staff folks in here who have them.  If you'd 6 

         just raise your hand, they can probably get them to you.  7 

         But if you fill this out, we need this information so that 8 

         we can include it when we provide testimony to the 9 

         legislature.   10 

                      Please be aware that some of our panelists may 11 

         need to leave a little bit early.  So if you guys need to 12 

         take a break, need to step out, that's perfectly okay.  13 

         We're just going to keep on moving.  And we will stay and 14 

         record testimony 'til everybody who wants to have a chance 15 

         to share their thoughts, their experiences, has an 16 

         opportunity to do so.  So at this time we'll call up our 17 

         first person for -- our first group for testimony, the Kent 18 

         Career Tech Center's health careers satellites, and teacher 19 

         Russ Wallsteadt and some of his students.  Thank you. 20 

                      MR. WALLSTEADT:  Thank you.  I get a lot of 21 

         support from my students, so I'm going to have them stand up 22 

         here while I start with you.  My name is Russ, and I work 23 

         for the Career Center, and I teach obviously health careers.  24 

         That's why we've got the costume on.  I've worked with some 25 
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         of you I can see in the audience already.  And what it is is 1 

         that it's a program that allows students to have the 2 

         opportunity to study jobs at the same time as they study 3 

         science, anatomy, terminology and stuff.  If you want to 4 

         pass out a few of those, if you would, information on the 5 

         program.  And I love it.  I've done it for about nine years 6 

         now after I left the health careers of actually working in 7 

         that business.  And my job used to be to train young people 8 

         in entry level jobs for health anyway.  So the organizations 9 

         I worked with, it was a nice transition.  10 

                      And what I've found that really seems to work -- 11 

         I'd like to stay with the positive.  What seems to really 12 

         work with kids is that they almost need a situation where 13 

         when things go bad, it doesn't matter -- I've taught all 14 

         over the district.  And it doesn't matter whether it's rural 15 

         or whether it's city, most of the teenagers face real 16 

         similar things.  Things will go haywire at home, things will 17 

         go haywire in dating, and all of a sudden the kids aren't 18 

         there.  They have to have a warm place to come.  And when I 19 

         say that, it has to be real welcoming, real calm.  And no 20 

         matter what happens, if they've been gone for three days, 21 

         that teacher needs to be friendly when they come in and not 22 

         say, "Where the heck have you been for three days?"  You 23 

         want to be real calm and real easy with the kids.  And I've 24 

         found that to be real successful.  The teachers that I work 25 
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         with I think we see about a majority of around 90 percent, 9 1 

         percent retention in that group.  And that's up to 12, 13 2 

         teachers now.  And so that's pretty successful to see that 3 

         kind of retention rate.  And then as far as the dropout of 4 

         high school, it's still they have to have something that 5 

         really tells them that they're going somewhere.  And that's 6 

         why I love what we do, because we teach them some jobs 7 

         junior and senior year.  And they know when they're done 8 

         they're going to get pay.  They know when they're done with 9 

         our classes that they've finished -- and these folks will 10 

         speak a little bit about that -- they'll be done with their 11 

         FAFSA, their college application's done, and they will 12 

         either have their job in place if they're going to wait a 13 

         little while or they'll have -- because we've got approved 14 

         for some small laptops we've been using this year, and they 15 

         all got their applications done and they got their financial 16 

         aid all done.  So I'm real proud of these two who will speak 17 

         in a minute, because they've done some of that.  I'll let 18 

         them speak to that. 19 

                      It's almost like having the old-fashioned home 20 

         room.  My daughters says to me, "Oh, Dad, you're so 50's.  21 

         You're so 1950's.  Whatever, Dad."  I've got a 15-year-old.  22 

         And what's cool about that is that what happens is you 23 

         really do have a situation like the old home room where we 24 

         spend two hours a day with them.  These students spent the 25 
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         whole year with me, which was a real gift to me; learned a 1 

         lot from these students.  And even when they wrote their 2 

         stuff today, they rehearsed a little bit of it so I could 3 

         hear it.  And I just learned all kinds of stuff after that 4 

         whole year.  So it's just really important to not discourage 5 

         kids.  No matter what is happening in their life, they've 6 

         got to be welcomed in the classroom and be able to do the 7 

         work, because they know it's a warm place to come, it's a 8 

         nice place to come.  The jobs that you'll see on the sheet, 9 

         we try to take them through a battery of jobs.  And when we 10 

         do that -- actually I gave them all away.  When we do that, 11 

         we do things like electrocardiogram technician, phlebotomy 12 

         if they spend the whole two years with us, certified nurse 13 

         aide.  And if you look down the list, there's even some real 14 

         basic entry things that they can do from dietary aide up.  15 

         So they know when they're done with us they can go make 16 

         their 8 or $10 an hour right out of the shoot, or they'll be 17 

         able to go to college.  Because they're savvy on the 18 

         Internet, these two pretty much have -- well, they really do 19 

         have all of their school paid for next year.  So they're 20 

         going to make it and they'll share that more with you.  21 

                      But I think this program is real signature, a 22 

         two-year program like that, certainly at least one year in 23 

         that kind of an environment.  And two years, two hours a day 24 

         often with only two teachers, so they get to know each 25 
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         other, the student and the teacher.  I think that's real 1 

         key, spending enough time that they'll end up trusting the 2 

         teacher in a program like this where they can see an 3 

         outcome.  Otherwise, it's just too much academics, not 4 

         enough outcome.  And I won't take any more of their time, 5 

         because they're really who need to speak.  So I'll leave it 6 

         to you folks. 7 

                      MS. RODRIGUEZ:  Good evening.  My name is Kristina 8 

         Rodriguez, and I attend Central High School.  I am also a 9 

         part of the health science and technology small school.  10 

         When entering high school, I wasn't sure what to make of the 11 

         experience or what to expect from anything.  I soon learned 12 

         that trying to get the grades that I wanted was really hard 13 

         work, and I doubted my ability to finish high school.  14 

         Towards the end of my freshman year, my sister got pregnant 15 

         and dropped out a month before she finished her sophomore 16 

         year of high school.  She had a beautiful baby girl.  But 17 

         with that came more pressure onto myself, because I was 18 

         always an A and B student.  My parents always expected so 19 

         much more from me because of the fact that my sister dropped 20 

         out, they thought that that would have in the same path.  21 

         But I didn't.  And I became a little depressed and thought 22 

         about dropping out and getting a job to help out my family 23 

         during my sophomore and junior year.  But at the same time, 24 

         I started at HSC small school.  And after talking to 25 
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         directors from the Upperbound Program, I decided that 1 

         college was important and that I should at least go for two 2 

         years for an associate's degree.  And during KCTC Essential 3 

         with Mr. Martinez and Ms. Babooki (phonetic), I thought 4 

         about being an R.N.  But after I joined the OE program last 5 

         year and in the beginning of my senior year, I found myself 6 

         and I decided to become a physical therapist. 7 

                      These program, Upperbound, OE and KCTC, all made 8 

         me believe in my self more and go to my highest potential as 9 

         to go for my master's at Central Michigan this fall.  I will 10 

         be starting my new journey because of all these programs 11 

         that I have been given the opportunity to be a part of.  12 

         Thank you. 13 

                      MR. HILL:  Hello.  My name is Justin Hill.  I am 14 

         currently a senior at Central High School.  Over the years I 15 

         have had many difficult situations intrude upon my life and 16 

         oftentimes cause more trouble than I believed I could 17 

         handle; issues involving family, money, friends, have all 18 

         been instruments in constructing my future.   19 

                      But I am not alone.  Teenagers everywhere deal 20 

         with stress factors that are often overwhelming for some.  21 

         Working late hours of the day and then going home to hours 22 

         of homework and a house filled with unsupportive parents and 23 

         a negative attitude is the reality for many of my closest 24 

         friends.  One of my friends in particular had to deal with 25 
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         these issues plus the added pressure of caring for her 1 

         younger sister because her parents were both alcoholics.  It 2 

         was in the ninth grade of high school that I met her, and 3 

         she was a very bright girl.  Then two years later her 4 

         frustrations grew so strong and the hassle of working late 5 

         tiring, that she dropped out of school and to go work for a 6 

         time and take care of her sister.  My friend has not 7 

         returned to school yet, but hopes to one day finish her high 8 

         school education at an alternative school and receive her 9 

         GED. 10 

                      Another friend of mine has similar troubles.  He 11 

         had trouble dealing with his anger and a father who 12 

         occasionally hit him for no apparent reason.  He was 13 

         certainly saddened by his father's actions and had no one to 14 

         confide in.  I myself tried to help console him, but his 15 

         anger and frustration drove him to dropping out of school 16 

         while only in his sophomore year of high school.  Even 17 

         though I would like to have seen him succeed, he has not 18 

         shown any real concern for his future.  I, on the other 19 

         hand, have. 20 

                      I really care about what happens to me and what my 21 

         future will hold.  Throughout my high school career I have 22 

         been striving to be my best and give my all for one reason.  23 

         I have seen the worst and I know that there are better 24 

         things to be had.  There have also been people that have 25 
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         encouraged and inspired me to improve upon my weaknesses, 1 

         focus on my strengths and not give up on my self.  People 2 

         like my former youth pastor, Drew Anthony, and my friend, 3 

         Bryce and Jose, and even Mr. Wallsteadt have set great 4 

         examples and never given up on me.  I believe that more kids 5 

         today were connected with -- if they were connected with 6 

         more teachers, pastors and goal-driven friends that have 7 

         been in my life, more teenagers would stay in school and not 8 

         drop out of high school.   9 

                      My life has not been easy by any means, but I know 10 

         that with hard work, determination and faith that I will 11 

         succeed.  Sound familiar?  I know.  This has been what has 12 

         gotten so many successful people where they are today.  Dr. 13 

         Benjamin Carson, Oprah Winfrey, Nick Cannon and others have 14 

         all fought through their struggles in childhood and 15 

         seemingly unsurmountable circumstances to become the more 16 

         successful figures they are today.  With these people as my 17 

         example, I can go on to college, on to medical school and on 18 

         to my life and career as a surgeon as I have been working 19 

         for.  I have been accepted to the University of Michigan.  20 

         Go Blue!  Go Blue!  I found all the money I need to fund my 21 

         education.  And I'm starting in the summer to jumpstart my 22 

         life that I have waited so long to see.  I just hope that 23 

         more kids will have the drive that I have had and people 24 

         that I have had in my life to encourage me to believe in 25 
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         myself and my ability to work hard and not necessarily be 1 

         smarter.  Thank you. 2 

                      MR. PRATT:  We have time for a quick question if 3 

         the panel has any. 4 

                      MRS. SALTERS:  I just have one, and it's 5 

         for the teacher.  Do your students have any trouble making 6 

         the number of credits and the concepts that they need to do 7 

         to get out of high school with your two hours of your 8 

         program, or are you meeting some of the benchmarks through 9 

         your program? 10 

                      MR. WALLSTEADT:  Yes.  Actually, the bosses that I 11 

         work for, what they've done is they've given us an awful lot 12 

         of training and time to set up more science in our program.  13 

         That's the first piece, so we can come up with enough 14 

         science credit is our goal over the next year to make this 15 

         work.  Because if you think about it, under ECG technician, 16 

         for instance, you're going to have to know an awful lot of 17 

         science and anatomy just to do that.  So we're -- what's 18 

         really lovely about these two students and the students I 19 

         have is we're doubling the content almost the last year, and 20 

         the students are stepping up.  And as teachers, we didn't 21 

         think that was going to happen.  It was, "Oh, my gosh.  22 

         We're going to bury them."  But in fact I think we 23 

         underestimated our students from all walks of life, and they 24 

         stepped up and they're doing better.  These students had 25 
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         added to the curriculum that we used to do an entire layer 1 

         of biotechnology this year.  First hour was that, which is 2 

         obviously science-based.  And then the jobs were the second 3 

         hour, where I used to just teach the jobs.  So I think we're 4 

         headed in the right direction.  Will there be enough time?  5 

         Not if there's a lot of band, not if there's a lot of stuff 6 

         that's what you call --  7 

                      MRS. SALTERS:  Electives? 8 

                      MR. WALLSTEADT:  -- electives.  Then we're in a 9 

         little bit of trouble.  But if we can still have that solid 10 

         year or two with them, I still think it makes a difference, 11 

         even if we only get them for a year. 12 

                      MR. QUISENBERRY:  You referenced just a 13 

         little bit about your students.  Do you have some quick 14 

         demographics about the numbers, what they're like, you know, 15 

         in terms of aptitude or background? 16 

                      MR. WALLSTEADT:  It's changed so much.  I started 17 

         as an advisor for the program back in '91.  And I remember 18 

         we always had 50 to 100 students in this program for KCTC.  19 

         And now it's up to -- I don't know if the guy in the back 20 

         can help me out -- I think we're close to 5-, 600 now -- 21 

         right? -- I think.  So we've grown that much.  And some of 22 

         that's because of the economy and health being on the 23 

         Miracle Mile and stuff downtown.  But the other thing is I 24 

         think the kids are pretty savvy that they really want to get 25 
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         something that they can work in and have that security. 1 

                      MR. QUISENBERRY:  Where do they come to you 2 

         from, what kind of -- what's their background? 3 

                      MR. WALLSTEADT:  They come from all over the 4 

         district, all the way -- I mean, we're talking Kent City, 5 

         Sparta, Central High has been generous to us with Grand 6 

         Rapids Public.  It's just every school.  Northview sends us 7 

         great kids.  I mean, we just got a whole bunch of referrals 8 

         from all the facilities.  Yeah.  It's really a mixed 9 

         demographics, which is kind of interesting.  And the neat 10 

         thing about that is that then those kids get to get 11 

         together, too.  Even if these kids are downtown a lot of the 12 

         time, they will come out to the center as much as once a 13 

         week and be involved with other kids from other places.  And 14 

         they'll hear other success stories.  So, yeah.  It still 15 

         goes back to the individual kid, though, because like he was 16 

         saying, motivation and the decision to do that, before 17 

         they're done with us -- and actually some of it's in the MEA 18 

         magazine last month if you haven't checked it out.  A couple 19 

         high schools, East Lansing and another small town one, are 20 

         good examples of that same warm environment.   21 

                      And the last thing that we do with them is the new 22 

         four-year plan stuff.  They have to do a "Me" presentation 23 

         then that becomes a "We" presentation in teams.  And they 24 

         have to present to industry at the end of the year just the 25 
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         things that you heard today.  I'm so proud of them.  Their 1 

         FAFSA, their financial aid's done.  They have security when 2 

         they leave us.  They know their next year is good, too.  So 3 

         I think that's what helps with the demographics, getting 4 

         everybody involved. 5 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you, all.  Appreciate it. 6 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Can I ask a quick question 7 

         of the students? 8 

                      MR. PRATT:  Oh, sure, of course. 9 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  For the students, it sounds 10 

         like you -- both of you have really made a difference with 11 

         your motivation yourselves, different than your friends, 12 

         Justin, and your sister perhaps.  And I'm wondering, was 13 

         there something within your school that could have helped 14 

         you differently or maybe could have helped your sister or 15 

         some practical advice you might have for schools that would 16 

         keep your sister in school or your friend in school? 17 

                      MR. HILL:  I think just for me that just having a 18 

         connection with the teachers and as peer advisors or, you 19 

         know, those people who can actually just talk to you in a 20 

         practical manner and tell you about their lives and actually 21 

         be able to connect with you on a one-to-one basis really 22 

         helps to, you know, encourage you to stay in school and not 23 

         be so much, you know, off alone and think about, "Oh, I'm 24 

         going to go away.  Nobody cares about me, you know." 25 
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                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  And that was the piece that 1 

         your friend had missed?  2 

                      MR. HILL:  Yeah.  He missed that. 3 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thanks. 4 

                      MS. RODRIGUEZ:  I think that because I was a part 5 

         of so many programs like Upperbound and KCTC that that 6 

         helped me further my education.  'Cause room is so limited 7 

         in those programs, a lot of kids don't get to the 8 

         opportunity to be part of, but also being concerned about 9 

         your grades and making sure you're up there, making sure 10 

         you're one-on-one with the teachers or telling them if 11 

         you're having trouble and having them help you out in 12 

         different ways. 13 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you. 14 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you both. 15 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you. 16 

                      MR. PRATT:  All right.  Next up we have the Kent 17 

         School Services Network program manager Dave Neefer, and 18 

         community school coordinator Ernestine Mays.  Dave, sorry if 19 

         I botched it.  And then also if anyone has written 20 

         testimony, we can certainly take that.  It makes 21 

         transcribing a whole lot easier.  And also the panelists, 22 

         when you ask questions, if you can move those mics around so 23 

         we can get those on tape too, that will be helpful.  Thanks. 24 

                      MR. NEIFER:  Good afternoon.  I'm very pleased to 25 
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         be here, as I have the privilege of being the program 1 

         manager for Kent School Services Network, which is a network 2 

         of eight site across Kent County in three school districts; 3 

         Grand Rapids Public, Godfrey-Lee and Comstock Park.  We're 4 

         working in early childhood center, we're working in three 5 

         elementary schools, a middle school, a K-8 building and also 6 

         another building that's K-5.  This program is a prevention.  7 

         It's not about obviously dropouts at the high school end of 8 

         this.  Our focus is on how do we stop this from happening.  9 

         As a former principal, this was always a concern -- 10 

         elementary principal -- how do we keep this from happening?   11 

                      What we've done is create what we call a place and 12 

         a series of partnerships that together help meet the needs 13 

         of our students.  We've been very good at having silos and 14 

         all of us have been good at our silos, whether we're from 15 

         education or nonprofits or public agencies.  But somehow we 16 

         didn't always know how to talk to each other and we didn't 17 

         quite know how do we make that happening.  And so what we're 18 

         trying to do and what we are doing over the past two years 19 

         is to create that partnership that will make those 20 

         conversations happen.  So I'm going to talk a little bit 21 

         about the structure of Kent School Services Network, and 22 

         then Ernestine, who is one of our community school 23 

         coordinators, will talk about what this really looks like on 24 

         the ground.  So let me just share a few thoughts. 25 
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                      Our vision is that all students are prepared 1 

         academically, emotionally and healthily to be successful in 2 

         schools.  That happens when the school community, the 3 

         nonprofits, funders and agencies that are working in our 4 

         schools all talk to each other and are working together.  5 

         The linchpin of making that happen is what we're calling a 6 

         community school coordinator.  That's a position that works 7 

         within the school and services as that liaison between the 8 

         principal, who we're trying to have be able to spend more 9 

         time on instructional leadership, which is their real focus, 10 

         and all those other services that come into the schools.  11 

         The community school coordinator works with the principal 12 

         very closely, but along with that we have in each of our -- 13 

         on each of our sites -- in each of our sites a nurse or a 14 

         nurse's aide and also staff members from the Department of 15 

         Human Services, what we call family independent specialists.  16 

         Their focus, obviously, is to work with the families that 17 

         have already been -- are already in the system.  But again, 18 

         the point is the people can come to the school for these 19 

         services rather than going down to Franklin Avenue.  And 20 

         they also are working a lot on attendance.  We know that if 21 

         we're going to have students be academically successful we 22 

         have to have them in school.  That's both in terms of all 23 

         day attendance and in terms of tardiness.  So we're working 24 

         a lot with that issue.  We know with the nurses we have to 25 
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         have kids who are healthy.  We have many students on a daily 1 

         basis -- and again, Ernestine can talk about this -- who are 2 

         coming who are not getting breakfast, who are dealing with 3 

         all kinds of physical issues that we just don't have time to 4 

         deal with unless somebody's there to coordinate that.  So 5 

         that person is also on site.  Beyond that, we're trying to 6 

         make sure that in terms of emotional needs, whether it's 7 

         anger management or whether it's parent-parental kinds of 8 

         trainings, that, again, that happens at the school site. 9 

                      Our focus is making sure that that school becomes 10 

         what we're calling a community school; that that's the place 11 

         where kids can come and families can come to feel safe, to 12 

         be provided with support and to be nurtured in order to move 13 

         forward in the system.  We've been at this two years.  We're 14 

         already seeing a great numbers of success.  And I'll just 15 

         share a couple of the things with it.  And I can talk about 16 

         this forever, because I'm so excited about it.  As an 17 

         example, we have these family independence specialists who 18 

         are now, as I say, working in the schools.  What they will 19 

         tell us is, "My gosh, what a difference it is to meet with 20 

         the families at the school.  It's a very different 21 

         environment.  We feel like we have a much better 22 

         relationship with our parents.  We feel like they can just 23 

         drop in and talk to us at any time."  So they're feeling a 24 

         much closer connection.  Bingo.  It's what we wanted; how do 25 
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         our parents feel more comfortable in our schools, one piece. 1 

                      The second piece is, as we're dealing with 2 

         attendance and with the issues of suspensions and those 3 

         sorts of things, we have one site that just within the last 4 

         two years has gone from 104 suspensions to two.  Is it just 5 

         our program?  No.  But it's our program working in 6 

         collaboration with all these other partners that together 7 

         are saying, "What do we have to do in order to make a 8 

         difference?  What's the role of the nurse?  What's the role 9 

         of the community school coordinator?  What's the role of the 10 

         FIS worker?  What's the role of the staff?"  And again, 11 

         coming together and talking about how do we make these 12 

         things happen on a daily, on a weekly, on a monthly basis.   13 

                      Another example, we had a school where they were 14 

         really struggling with getting parents involved.  They had 15 

         two literacy coaches.  The literacy coaches were going to do 16 

         an evening and they thought they might get 30 or 40 parents.  17 

         They decided, "Gee, what can we do to involve more people, 18 

         to have more people feel comfortable?"  So they decided to 19 

         make a potluck out of it.  So they combined a literacy night 20 

         with a potluck.  They had over 800 people.  And people -- I 21 

         was just in the school on Monday, and the people are already 22 

         saying, parents, "Can we do this again next year?  When are 23 

         we going to do it again?"  It's those kinds of connections 24 

         that build that support, that build those relationships that 25 
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         we know ultimately will keep these kids in school.  So those 1 

         are the kinds of things that we're trying to do to make that 2 

         happen. 3 

                      Just one more example, and then I'm going to move 4 

         to a couple other things.  We have one district that does 5 

         not have public transportation between a large apartment 6 

         complex and the school that we're working in.  A lot of talk 7 

         about, "Well, gosh, the parents don't care.  They don't 8 

         come," you know, the kinds of things we all tend to say 9 

         sometimes and shouldn't.  We got talking to the apartment 10 

         complex.  They've donated an apartment to us, so we're 11 

         actually down on site.  We can have conferences there.  12 

         We're doing programs in the summer.   13 

                      Again, how do we take the needs to the people that 14 

         need them?  One of the things I've been learning from 15 

         Children's Aid Society, which has been our technical support 16 

         in this process, is having parents come to school is no 17 

         longer necessarily the vision, because they can't always get 18 

         there.  How do we take it out to the parents?  Having this 19 

         apartment complex or this apartment -- they didn't get the 20 

         whole complex -- has really helped us to do that in a much 21 

         more significant and a much more formal way.  So that's how 22 

         we're -- that's how we're trying to work.  Our hope is that 23 

         over time -- and we're looking at a sustainability model for 24 

         this -- that we increase student academic achievement, 25 
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         bottom line for all of us, how do we make kids more 1 

         successful academically; how do we reduce student 2 

         attendance; how do we increase student attendance; how do we 3 

         reduce dropout rate and tardiness; how do we make services 4 

         happen in a more timely manner?   5 

                      One of the things we found out when we were first 6 

         looking into this was people got referred for services, but 7 

         often there was a transportation issue with getting there or 8 

         it was a long time in between and the need just continued to 9 

         get greater.  We're trying to be very responsive.  And 10 

         again, having the community school coordinator there as that 11 

         link, as that network person, can make sure that things get 12 

         followed up on and make sure things happen in a timely 13 

         fashion as we can possibly make it.  We're also hoping what 14 

         this leads to is more stability in our communities.  We know 15 

         we have a tremendous amount of movement in all our 16 

         communities, and that's not necessarily an economic issue.  17 

         It's an economic issue at all levels because of transfers 18 

         and so forth.  How do we help build that bond between the 19 

         school and the family and the students so that parents want 20 

         to stay there?  I was just talking to another community 21 

         school coordinator last week, and that's exactly what she 22 

         said.  She started to have parents say, "Wow, I hope we can 23 

         stay.  I feel like this is where I belong."  Now, we don't 24 

         always control those situations, but where we can we want to 25 
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         make sure those families have the kind of support that they 1 

         need in order to be successful.  2 

                      So big vision.  And the reason this is working is 3 

         that everybody came to the table at the very beginning.  We 4 

         had funders at the table, we had school people, we had 5 

         nonprofits, we had government, we had government agencies, 6 

         all came together to define this vision up front.  And once 7 

         we had that vision, they have continued to stay involved and 8 

         support this as we move it forward.  So our goal is to make 9 

         sure that this not only happens in eight sites but it 10 

         happens in 80 sites over time.  Because we believe that 11 

         community school model, the community being the place for 12 

         kids in schools, kids and families to find success, both 13 

         academically, emotionally and socially, is the key to those 14 

         kids staying in school when they get down the road. 15 

                      And, Ernestine, I go and take up your time, so why 16 

         don't you come and talk more specifically about what happens 17 

         on the site? 18 

                      MS. MAYS:  Okay.  I know I have about five to ten 19 

         minutes to present.  And I appreciate what Dave has said 20 

         about the community school model, but what I wanted to do 21 

         was basically highlight some things that we're doing at 22 

         Alger Middle School, which is the school site that I am at 23 

         with Grand Rapids Public Schools.  One of the things that I 24 

         want to say first and foremost is that the student that 25 



 27

         spoke -- I don't know if he's still here, but one of the 1 

         things that -- he's still here -- one of the things that he 2 

         said was about relationship, developing, forming, sustaining 3 

         relationships.  And so the community school model basically 4 

         drives that home; that how important it is to develop those 5 

         relationships and to sustain those relationships, not only 6 

         in the school environment, but with families, with students 7 

         and the community. 8 

                      So what I wanted to do was just briefly give you 9 

         some things that we're doing at Alger Middle School.  10 

         There's several things that's going on, but I just cannot 11 

         within five minutes tell you the big picture.  So I'm going 12 

         to do the best that I can, because I always like to give 13 

         recognition to our community partners who are working so 14 

         hard in Alger Middle School with that same vision that our 15 

         students can be successful and student achievement is 16 

         foremost in their heart -- hearts, I should say.   17 

                      The first thing that we have -- one of the things 18 

         that we have at Alger Middle School that we learned from 19 

         this community school model was to develop what is called a 20 

         community school leadership team.  And a community school 21 

         leadership team is basically is an essential part to student 22 

         success and is committed -- and it involves committed 23 

         community partnerships between the school and community 24 

         organizations.  The community leadership team unites to 25 
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         offer students and families supports to remove barriers to 1 

         learning, provide and recruit services to help students 2 

         succeed and to support building staff with resources that 3 

         help motivate and move students to academic achievement. 4 

                      Again, the community school team at Alger Middle 5 

         School is consistent of building staff, community partners, 6 

         and also we just were able to recruit a parent to be a part 7 

         of our team.  We also have at Alger Middle School an 8 

         attendance team, which is something that Dave discussed as 9 

         well, too.  What's the goal of the attendance team?  It's to 10 

         promote student achievement by addressing truancy concerns.  11 

         This team meets weekly to review student school attendance 12 

         concerns, address them and work with the students, families 13 

         and the community to insure that students have regular 14 

         attendance.  The team works with families to address any 15 

         barriers that may be impeding good attendance.  Families are 16 

         connected with in-house resources at Alger Middle School and 17 

         also community resources to address whatever their needs may 18 

         be that may be preventing those students from successfully 19 

         having good attendance at Alger Middle School.   20 

                      The other thing that I wanted to say is that the 21 

         after school program, the Loop program at Grand Rapids -- 22 

         through Grand Rapids Parks and Recreation Department.  Now, 23 

         the Loop Program seeks to provide quality programming for 24 

         students, build positive relationships, strengthen academics 25 
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         and build additional skills while the students are also 1 

         having fun.  And it also provides a safe and structured 2 

         environment for students as well, too.  But with what we say 3 

         OST is out of school time at Alger Middle School, Kent 4 

         School Services network, Alger Middle School and community 5 

         partners believe that OST time, out of school time, in the 6 

         after school program should focus on individual student 7 

         achievement and school-wide area academic need.  The reason 8 

         we say this is because it helped to increase coordination, 9 

         cohesiveness and communication between the school and 10 

         community partners.  It also creates a more meaningful and 11 

         effective experience for students and volunteers of tutors 12 

         and mentors in our school.  Everything in the Loop 13 

         Program -- and we've had many discussions with this and also 14 

         brought in many of our organizations, partners that are 15 

         involved now at the school program, for everything in the 16 

         Loop program has an element of daytime academic goals and 17 

         activities in their programming.  This is especially 18 

         important for kids who have academic needs or require 19 

         supports in particular areas. 20 

                      So basically what that is saying is that there's a 21 

         connection between what happens in school during the day to 22 

         what also happens in the after school program as well as the 23 

         continuation of learning and also providing children with a 24 

         safe environment. 25 
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                      One of the things that I cannot just really say 1 

         enough about, and that is about our community partners at 2 

         Alger Middle School.  Our neighborhood association, our 3 

         faith-based churches, it is a site that is growing and 4 

         continuing to grow.  And at Alger we see that in order for 5 

         our school to be successful we have to have those 6 

         connections.  We have to have the community to support our 7 

         students.  We have to have the community partners that has 8 

         the "yes" in their heart that our students can success, and 9 

         that they are willing and committed to do what they need to 10 

         do in order for this to happen.  It's about setting aside 11 

         organizational agendas, because many organizations have 12 

         their own agendas, but also seeing the vision.  And what is 13 

         that vision?  That vision is student achievement.  That's 14 

         what we really try to emphasize with this community school 15 

         model.   16 

                      So I just wanted to just say without community 17 

         partnership, just a few I'm going to highlight.  We have the 18 

         Salvation Army Transitional Crock (phonetic) Center.  They 19 

         have a leadership academy which we have some of our students 20 

         involved in providing leadership skills, academic 21 

         achievement, through a more structured approach.  They also 22 

         include tutoring and mentoring.  This Salvation Army also 23 

         tracks student academics so that they address -- be 24 

         addressed on their program.  Again, that's the connection 25 
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         between what's happening in school with out of school time 1 

         as well, too.  They use a three-legged approach; their 2 

         organization, the school and the home.   3 

                      DA Blodgett for Children Mentoring for Success 4 

         Program providing in school mentoring during the time that 5 

         the students are in school.  And it's a flexible program and 6 

         it also focuses on the needs of the students.  And this 7 

         particular program with the mentors coming in, it can be 8 

         driven -- the activities can be driven by what the teachers 9 

         are recommending as well.  We have the School to Career 10 

         Progression Program, which is a multi-generational readiness 11 

         program offered to parents and students for whom are 12 

         interested in learning more about available careers and 13 

         increasing their employability skills.  14 

                      One of the things I would say is that what we're 15 

         looking at at Alger Middle School, which also support 16 

         decrease in the dropout rates, it's really having the 17 

         parents be involved in the lives of their students.  So 18 

         that's why we also try to recruit programs that the programs 19 

         would also have families that would be at the center of 20 

         attention.  We also have our parent and community 21 

         engagement, peer listening and our coordinated school health 22 

         program at Alger.   23 

                      But I would just sum it up by saying with Kent 24 

         School Services Network we seek to align services in the 25 
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         school building and also out of school.  We seek to address 1 

         school truancy through our attendance team, recruiting and 2 

         sustaining community relationship, recruiting program that 3 

         will support student achievement, also educating the 4 

         community on the needs of the school building and really 5 

         just really building that strong community relationship and 6 

         supporting school staff to insure that all students are 7 

         healthy and ready to learn.  And I as one person cannot do 8 

         it alone, so I'm really appreciative for the staff, the 9 

         volunteers and all of those who are working to make this a 10 

         model that will help our children in Grand Rapids.  Thank 11 

         you. 12 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thank you both very much.  With the 13 

         panel's permission -- Mark, if you have a quick one? 14 

                      MR. THOMAS:  I have a question. 15 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  We can take one quick question, 16 

         and then we're going to get the next group down here. 17 

                      MR. THOMAS:  Certainly.  The model 18 

         sounds very interesting.  Assuming that it's not going to 19 

         solve the dropout issue for your school at all, I mean, 20 

         completely, what else needs to be added to this or in 21 

         addition to what you're already doing that -- 'cause I 22 

         didn't hear any goals about where you wanted the -- how much 23 

         you wanted to reduce your dropout rate using the program.  24 

         But what is lacking from resources that would say that this 25 
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         program could take this to, you know, closely eliminate your 1 

         dropout problem in your schools?  So what's lacking or what 2 

         additional resources would you need to make this even more 3 

         effective?  (inaudible)  4 

                      MR. NEIFER:  One of the needs is we're trying to 5 

         look at the model right now.  We'll probably have more on 6 

         time mental health services.  We're bringing resources in.  7 

         We've got good relationships with Wedgewood and FOC and 8 

         Arbor Circle.  But to have somebody, again, on staff more, 9 

         especially in terms of relationships.  They come in and out 10 

         and do the programs, but if we could have them there more 11 

         full time, we talked a lot about that being a piece of it 12 

         that would be really helpful.  I don't know if you would 13 

         support that. 14 

                      MS. MAYS:  I would say that one of the most 15 

         important things to is also identify what the needs of the 16 

         students are in the school.  And I think that once you start 17 

         to identify what the needs of the students and families are 18 

         within the school, that also gives us the roadmap of what 19 

         direction we can take in order to better serve the students 20 

         and families in our school. 21 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thanks.  All right.  The next program 22 

         we have up, the Teen Leadership Program Capturing Kids 23 

         Hearts, that's teacher Joe Pellerito and his students.  You 24 

         guys can come down. 25 
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                      MR. PELLERITO:  Hi.  Good evening.  I'd like to 1 

         start by hearing something good from Mr. Konarska 2 

         Mr. Konarska, can you tell me something good? 3 

                      MR. KANARSKA:  You're here.  That's great. 4 

                      MR. PELLERITO:  That's good.  Thank you very much. 5 

         I'm going to clap for that and I'm glad to see you here, 6 

         too.  Right now you might be thinking, "Why am I clapping 7 

         right now?"  The way we start out our classes in Teen 8 

         Leadership is just that.  (sings)"Tell me something good"; right?  9 

         The students are actually leading it, though.  The students 10 

         are leading for some positive information.  It helps us get 11 

         to know them.  It takes about a minute.  It really doesn't 12 

         take that long.  And that is just one tiny piece of this 13 

         entire program.  This program, there's some information 14 

         getting passed out to you right now.  This is through 15 

         Capturing Kids Hearts, which you may have heard the Kent 16 

         Intermediate School District offers that training.  They 17 

         have for the last couple years.  Some schools have since 18 

         adopted that model.  And I know that Kentwood, all the 19 

         grades through nine through 12 all the teachers were trained 20 

         in this model.  But what it's really stressing is that 21 

         relationship piece that I've already heard about in here 22 

         today. 23 

                      The relationship's really important.  And one of 24 

         the sayings of the Flippin' group, which is the company that 25 
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         sponsors this, is you capture a kid's heart and you've got 1 

         their head.  When you get their heart and they know you and 2 

         they know you care, they want to work for you and they want 3 

         to do what they can.  I've got a lot of stuff I could say 4 

         here.  The training in itself is two and a half days for the 5 

         teachers.  I'm going to let the students talk, because I 6 

         think they're really the experts here.  So I'd like to go 7 

         ahead and introduce Dontrell Gullitch (phonetic). 8 

                      MR. GULLITCH:  Hi.  My name is Dontrell Gullitch.   9 

         I'm a student at East Kentwood High School.  I'm a sophomore.  10 

         And, yeah, like Mr. Pellerito was saying, you just have to 11 

         have a relationship with the students, because it's 12 

         important for students to feel more connected to the 13 

         teachers and come home and feel safe and just be, like, 14 

         "Okay.  I'm cool.  My parents and my teachers and I can" -- 15 

         "I can" -- "no matter where I go, I feel okay."  And me 16 

         being an ex-gang member, I've experienced that to the point 17 

         where I didn't want to come to school.  I would, like, be in 18 

         fights and just not want to do anything, 'cause I -- in the 19 

         mindset I didn't think anyone would be patient enough with 20 

         me to talk to me and I didn't think that I was -- I was in a 21 

         depressing state where I didn't think that I would achieve 22 

         anything.  I was just in the fact that no one cares.  And 23 

         that's just -- it happened for two years and that's just how 24 

         my mindset was for that time.  But as I came to school and 25 
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         teachers began to come -- become more connected with me, I 1 

         felt like I could just come to school and just anything that 2 

         was happening I could talk to them about.  And I felt more 3 

         connected to them as well as I had a better relationship 4 

         with my teachers and my students -- and other students in 5 

         the school.  And just that it's better to have a connection 6 

         because, if you don't have a connection, you don't have 7 

         anything.  So it's just better if you'd be able to talk to 8 

         the students as well as know how they feel about staying in 9 

         school and what you can do to help them achieve more goals 10 

         and just encourage them to do better.  And the more programs 11 

         and encouragement that we get is better for us.  It's just 12 

         take it and just be more encouraged in what we can get from 13 

         that and just do what we know we can achieve.  Thank you.  14 

         And I will be presenting my friend Mieka. 15 

                      MS. MIEKA PENNING:  As he said, my name is Mieka, 16 

         Mieka Penning (phonetic).  I am a freshman at East Kentwood 17 

         High School.  Since third grade I have hated school.  I 18 

         didn't -- I passed barely.  At the end -- when the end of 19 

         the marking period come and you got your report card coming, 20 

         that's my crunch time right there.  Before then I didn't 21 

         care.  And I fought all the time.  I spent most of my 22 

         elementary and junior high at home because I was always 23 

         suspended.  I mean, there's just -- I can't say I wasn't 24 

         bad, because I was bad.  But that was the only thing.  I was 25 
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         sort of like I didn't know myself.  I didn't know what I 1 

         wanted.  By seventh grade I figured I wasn't going to 2 

         college.  I never considered dropping out, because I knew my 3 

         parents wouldn't accept it.  But I wouldn't go to college.  4 

         I knew when I was 18 you couldn't make me do anything.  I 5 

         just wanted to go out and find myself really, to tell you 6 

         the truth.   7 

                      In ninth grade I met my teacher Mr. Pellerito.  8 

         Second marking period is when I actually made a change.  9 

         First marking period I was still doing the same thing.  I 10 

         actually started the second marking period late.  I was 11 

         suspended, as usual.  I met him and I expected him to be 12 

         very judgmental of me because I was starting out suspended.  13 

         And I knew that, you know, not to say that teachers talk 14 

         about you but, like, to say, like, they talk about kids like 15 

         say what kind of problems they had, you know, like regular 16 

         conversation.  So I knew he must have knew something, you 17 

         know.  And so I expected him to not want to deal with me, so 18 

         I already had, like, a negative attitude in my mind.  But, 19 

         like, I got -- I don't know why, but for some reason I sort 20 

         of gave the class a chance.  And it really helped you find 21 

         yourself.  It helped me to learn more about myself, because 22 

         it is about working with team members.  It is about working 23 

         with others and learning how to deal with others by things 24 

         such as techniques that's called social contracts; telling 25 
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         me what you don't like, basically.  It tells me that you 1 

         don't like me to take your things, don't like me to give you 2 

         put downs.  And it really gives boundaries and it shows 3 

         how -- it teaches how to connect with each other in a way.  4 

         And taking that class it actually gave me an inner view of 5 

         myself, self-confidence, eye contact, how to communicate 6 

         with people, tell people things that I don't like.  I always 7 

         think about huggers in the hallway, if I don't want to hug 8 

         you.  It teaches you to do a lot of things.  You also learn 9 

         to build relationships with people.  Taking it to other 10 

         classrooms -- you would think that it would stay in one 11 

         place, but you find yourself slowly but surely -- even if 12 

         you're the meanest person in the world, you'll find yourself 13 

         doing things differently.   14 

                      You can't go on taking this class without bringing 15 

         something, even if you don't show it in your heart, you know 16 

         you learned something.  In your heart you know you have the 17 

         potential to do anything you want to do, and having teachers 18 

         that show they care and having teachers be there for you and 19 

         tell you and get on you about not doing your homework.  Mr. 20 

         Bennilong (phonetic), he always told me, "You have to come 21 

         to class on time," because I'm never on time.  So having 22 

         them show you that you care, coming to school is not just 23 

         about my friends anymore.  That's not just about coming to 24 

         support my friend that's about to jump somebody.  It's not 25 
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         about that anymore to me.  Now it's about coming to see my 1 

         teachers, you know.  Now it's coming to see what I got on my 2 

         English test, you know.  If it's a C+ I still, you know -- 3 

         I'm still going to see what I got and I'm there to benefit.  4 

         I even stay after school sometimes with my math teacher now.  5 

                      I'm really trying to succeed.  And I think that 6 

         Teen Leadership really helped people thinking about dropping 7 

         out.  They're not always just dropping out because they're 8 

         lazy.  Sometimes it's inner problems.  They don't know what 9 

         they want.  So I think you should really think about this 10 

         class.  And next I will be introducing my friend Yolanda. 11 

                      MS. YOLANDA (unknown last name):  First I'd like 12 

         to say that high school is definitely a time of fun and new 13 

         experiences, a time of growing and maturing, especially your 14 

         freshman year.  You come to a high school where you're not 15 

         really sure what to expect.  Freshman -- being a freshman in 16 

         East Kentwood High School, I learned a lot of things.  I 17 

         came from a family of five children, all boys.  I'm the only 18 

         girl and the youngest.  So I came -- my family has dreams 19 

         and goals that they would like to accomplish, but none of 20 

         them have really accomplished them.  My brothers were all 21 

         dropouts.  I have a 16-year-old brother who is a father and 22 

         19-year-old brother who's in prison.   23 

                      And growing up it was hard to find that success 24 

         somewhere in my family, find a role model to look up to, to 25 
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         have that motivation to want to get up to go to school every 1 

         day.  Somewhere within me I found that motivation.  I do get 2 

         up every morning and go to school.  And I think about 3 

         college every day.  Teen Leadership definitely, definitely, 4 

         definitely had an impact on that.  Going to Teen Leadership, 5 

         it's a place where you can vent, a place where you can talk 6 

         about your problems, interact with kids who have the same 7 

         problems, a kid that you never knew throughout the year and 8 

         then you find you have things in common, family problems, 9 

         everything, knowing that everyone is going to succeed in 10 

         Teen Leadership.  You go to that class and you find that 11 

         things such as first impressions make a big deal; 30 seconds 12 

         for a first impression with 20 additional meetings to fix a 13 

         wrong impression.  Knowing that WIT, Whatever It Takes, is 14 

         what it takes to get you in life.  You have to be willing to 15 

         take that road of doing whatever it takes to get what you 16 

         want.   17 

                      There was a point in my life where my brothers 18 

         were all gone.  My parents had got a divorce and my brothers 19 

         were all taken away.  A brother got sent to a foster home, 20 

         and it was just me and my mom.  And at that point I wasn't 21 

         her problem.  My brothers were the main spotlight.  It was 22 

         always, "We have to focus on the negative things, the 23 

         negative things that they did wrong."  "Oh, he's in jail.  24 

         Oh, he got a bad grade.  Let's focus on them."  I was pushed 25 
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         aside.  "Oh, she'll do fine.  She'll do fine."  Knowing that 1 

         inside, I was hurting.  I needed that motivation.   2 

                      In going to Teen Leadership, I found that 3 

         self-motivation to want to do better.  And I look -- I don't 4 

         look down on my brothers.  I look at them as a part of my 5 

         motivation, a part to look at them and realize that's not 6 

         what I want to be.  I want to succeed and be somebody.  And 7 

         dropping out was never -- it was never their goals, and I 8 

         know that for a fact.  And if they had the support that I 9 

         have in Teen Leadership, I'm 100 percent sure they would 10 

         have graduated.  They have leadership skills that we learn.  11 

         The problem was they didn't know where to put those 12 

         leadership skills.  They took those leadership skills and 13 

         brought them to the streets where they didn't belong.  And 14 

         if they had Teen Leadership, I know that they would have 15 

         took those leadership skills, brought them to school and 16 

         applied them to life in a successful way.   17 

                      I'm not saying that every kid needs to grow up to 18 

         be a lawyer, a big-time lawyer in Michigan.  That's 19 

         successful, but that's not what you need to do to be 20 

         successful.  A high school diploma is good enough to 21 

         open opportunities in life.  And that's a major success just 22 

         a high school diploma.   23 

                      So to wrap it all up, I want to say Teen 24 

         Leadership is definitely a place where kids connect.  They 25 
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         go there not knowing what they're really in for, but 1 

         realizing in the end that it really was a place that helped 2 

         them set their goals.  And it's never -- it's never a place 3 

         where kids get judged.  And teachers -- you do connect with 4 

         teachers, and it really does help.  If teachers were like 5 

         that in every other class, I'm sure that kids would graduate 6 

         and pass their classes with a lot more potential and wanting 7 

         it.  'Cause everyone knows if -- you have to want it for 8 

         yourself and for no one else in order to get where you want 9 

         to be.  And if you don't want it, then it's not going to 10 

         happen.  You have to know that you want it.  With teachers 11 

         like Mr. Pellerito, they help you succeed and help you find 12 

         that want within you somewhere.  And that's all. 13 

                      MR. PRATT:  Time for a quick question.  Mark? 14 

                      MR. THOMAS:  Very quickly, thank you so much.  I 15 

         think one of the things that comes to mind for me is I hope 16 

         all of you have heard some of the consistencies about 17 

         emotional dysfunction is going to happen every day in our 18 

         schools with our kids because it's a human condition.  When 19 

         you listen to these students in what they're doing, they're 20 

         finding significant adults.  And I know the MEA was a lead 21 

         collaborator with the MiChild survey last year that looked 22 

         at finding ways and as this whole piece that comes out to 23 

         finding about building these relationships and the value of 24 

         relationships.  Because before we can get to the rigor, as 25 
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         Mr. Wallsteadt understands, as Mr. Pellerito understands, as 1 

         our social service agencies, and then you have these kids 2 

         who come back and say, "They looked under the tip of the 3 

         iceberg.  I wasn't judged about this and that."  And there's 4 

         so many other things going on in their lives.  Well, then 5 

         it's about building a bigger toolbox.  Not everyone has the 6 

         same size toolbox or the same size resources.  And I would 7 

         applaud the teachers and the students for understanding that 8 

         and finding ways to expand that toolbox.  Because with the 9 

         relationships comes the ability then to do the rigor and the 10 

         academics.  So thank you so much for your efforts. 11 

                      MR. PRATT:  One more quick question, and then 12 

         we'll get going. 13 

                      MR. QUISENBERRY:  Students, thank you very 14 

         much.  I appreciate that, too.  Joe, could you explain -- 15 

         maybe I'm just not catching it -- how does your program fit 16 

         into the school day?  I'm kind of questioning is this a 17 

         professional development experience for all teachers, which 18 

         can be cool, or is it a class that school buildings can add? 19 

                      MR. PELLERITO:  Let me start with Capturing Kids 20 

         Hearts, because that's where any teacher can take that 21 

         training.  But Kentwood chose to have every teacher take 22 

         that training, and there are some other districts as well 23 

         that have actually chosen to do that as well.  So that's 24 

         where the relationship comes in for all teachers.  But Teen 25 
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         Leadership is a class for the students to kind of practice 1 

         the same skills we're learning about in Capturing Kids 2 

         Hearts.  And Kentwood chose to make that a requirement for 3 

         all ninth graders.  I'm really glad that's happened, because 4 

         you really get the best mix of students.  It's a smaller 5 

         class.  It's usually around 25 students maximum.  And you're 6 

         creating the environment.  It's about facilitation, creating 7 

         that environment where they can actually see some success 8 

         and feel it and feel supported by each other and know that 9 

         they can take some risks and grow from there.  Thanks a lot. 10 

                      MR. PRATT:  Thanks you guys.  Okay.  Next up we 11 

         have the Kent Intervention Team, represented by truancy 12 

         officer Ross Cate.  And also while we're waiting for Ross to 13 

         come down, I just wanted to -- we've run through an hour of 14 

         our testimony thus far and we still have a long ways to go.  15 

         So if everybody can try to keep it to just a couple minutes 16 

         and we'll give time for a question or two and move on.  So, 17 

         Ross, there you go. 18 

                      MR. CATE:  Good afternoon.  Good afternoon, panel 19 

         members.  I have a job that many people think is a difficult 20 

         job.  I also think it's difficult.  I work with all the 21 

         school districts in the Kent ISD.  My region is the 20 22 

         public school districts in Kent County, Kent ISD, and is 23 

         going to six other counties as well.  We're talking a 24 

         population of about 132,000 students.  And every year I have 25 
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         between 1,000 and 1200 students between the ages of 5 up to 1 

         17 that are referred to my office.  My office consists of 2 

         myself and a part-time secretary, so that can give you some 3 

         framework and some perspective of what I do. 4 

                      You may have seen my brochure out there, which 5 

         gives you some very important information on the importance 6 

         of preventing dropping out.  And there are especially very 7 

         important.  As you see, many of these children are pictured 8 

         here are little kids.  And what we need to do is develop 9 

         intervention practices which I'm proud to say that the Kent 10 

         County and Kent ISD has done with early childhood programs 11 

         like Bright Beginnings and Early on.  Those are excellent 12 

         programs.  They begin to address the issues at brain 13 

         development from zero to age 5.  We need that, because so 14 

         much of the development of the brain and academic success is 15 

         done at that point in time. 16 

                      Another very important time, some people count 17 

         prison beds for kids that are failing in third grade.  And 18 

         the reason they do that is because in first grade and second 19 

         grade they're being taught how to read.  In third grade they 20 

         make the transition over to how to apply reading to all 21 

         their other subjects that they're taught.  That is a very 22 

         critical intervention stage as far as kids being regularly 23 

         in attendance and in their school programs. 24 

                      Another very important part in a child's and 25 
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         student's full life spectrum of development is in middle 1 

         school.  Middle school is described by some as a very 2 

         squirrelly stage.  By parents it's a stage where they get 3 

         more gray hair, it's where they pull out their hair at 4 

         times.  And for students, all of a sudden their parents were 5 

         people that were wise, protective, caring, all of a sudden 6 

         they become oppressors, dictators, people that they can't 7 

         stand.  And that's an important stage, because then they 8 

         start looking to their peers or they start looking to other 9 

         adults who can relate to them to give them some sense of 10 

         grounding and some sense of anchoring.  So middle school is 11 

         a very important age, too. 12 

                      Now, going into ninth grade, all of us probably 13 

         remember what happens in ninth grade.  We're the youngest 14 

         class.  And unless you're in a freshmen campus, and even if 15 

         you are, you're going to have some problems.  And those 16 

         problems come from tenth, eleventh and twelfth graders.  And 17 

         many times those problems are the worst from the tenth 18 

         graders because what did they do just the year before that?  19 

         They experienced being a ninth grader.  Now, in high school 20 

         that's where credits start counting.  Kids are looking in 21 

         middle school relevant to them.  "Why am I here?  What's 22 

         going to happen if I come to school every day?  I'm not 23 

         doing well or I'm bored.  This doesn't seem to apply to my 24 

         situation.  Why should I even come?"  That's where middle 25 
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         school programming, according to a North Carolina 1 

         legislative study, is extremely important to gear kids 2 

         towards career and vocational interests so they can bridge 3 

         the gap between where they've been as an elementary student 4 

         and where they're going and why they should remain in 5 

         school.  So any types of vocational and career stuff geared 6 

         to a middle school population is extremely important for 7 

         those kids to be able to see the relevance in school. 8 

                      Now, what happens when the kids turn 16?  In the 9 

         State of Michigan these children can drop out, according to 10 

         the state law, because the state law is from 6 to 16 years 11 

         of age.  At that point it becomes increasingly more critical 12 

         to help the parents and that young adult realize what their 13 

         options are at that time and before they get out and drop 14 

         out completely.  Because at that point in time that's where 15 

         they get the experiences of, "I can't get a job because I 16 

         dropped out of school.  Or if I get a job, thankfully 17 

         they'll want me to go back to school.  And I'm basically 18 

         preyed upon by all the elements in society, which is party 19 

         on, alcohol, drugs, sex."  And so many of those endeavors at 20 

         that age create a roadblock to those kids ever resuming 21 

         their education in the near part of their life.  Some of 22 

         them have to wait way beyond that.  Some of them never get 23 

         there. 24 

                      In those situations, what we have to do is look at 25 
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         reducing the prison population and reducing the people that 1 

         are on welfare.  How do we do that?  We do that by the 2 

         variety of programs that we have and that we are 3 

         establishing that make relevance to parents, sense to kids.  4 

         And when we do that, we cut down the numbers of kids that 5 

         are eventually going to drop out of school or that end up in 6 

         welfare or end up in the prison system.  And part of what my 7 

         office is is to focus the power of the law and the power of 8 

         some authority in those parents' and kids' life that points 9 

         them in a direction to the variety of programs that are so 10 

         essential for them to make contact to.  But sometimes the 11 

         kids or the parents need a wake-up call and they need to be 12 

         put in contact with those situations that can make a 13 

         difference.  And when that happens, then you've got a higher 14 

         degree of success and you won't see as many problems as we 15 

         see now.  Thank you. 16 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  Next up we have the Workforce 17 

         Investment Act group with program manager Duane Kiley and 18 

         some of his students. 19 

                      MR. KILEY:  Good evening panelists, guests, 20 

         presenters.  I work for Kent Intermediate School District in 21 

         a program that's funded through the Michigan Works!  And if 22 

         you know anything about Michigan Works!, our program is all 23 

         about providing a viable and functioning workforce for 24 

         Michigan.   25 
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                      What Michigan Works! has found out is that it's 1 

         really hard to do that if you're working with people who are 2 

         out of work who don't have diplomas, who don't have 3 

         training, who don't have any college experience.  So some 4 

         far-reaching thinkers -- and I don't know who they are.  I 5 

         wish I could give credit to them -- decided to develop a 6 

         program that would focus on getting kids to graduate, 7 

         getting them into post-secondary and getting them into other 8 

         training.  So what we did was we identified students across 9 

         the county who were at high risk of dropout, high risk of 10 

         failure, and set up a program that was based on two research 11 

         methods proven successful, one of which you've heard 12 

         repeatedly tonight, which is to have a partnership with 13 

         somebody in the schools that's effective and working. 14 

                      The second thing is to give them a program that 15 

         they actually see that there's a viable outcome out there 16 

         for them that's something they're interested in and it's 17 

         something that offers them a future so that they know why 18 

         they're going to school, they understand why it is they need 19 

         that high school diploma and why they need to move on 20 

         further.  In putting those two forces together, then 21 

         leveraging all the activities that go on in the schools that 22 

         we have available through the Kent Career Technical Center, 23 

         transition center, through the counseling offices, through 24 

         the Christian organizations, and to sum it all up making a 25 
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         very complex project because each of the students who are in 1 

         this program are given an individual service plan, so it's 2 

         highly designed after what they need to do. 3 

                      The money flows through and is utilized to fund 4 

         mentors, and that's where that connection comes through so 5 

         that every student in the program has somebody who's 6 

         reaching out to them one-to-one.  And we fund basically 7 

         three hours of mentor time for every mentor for every seven 8 

         students that they work with.  And we're currently in 19 9 

         high schools.  Quickly as some data, our first year of 10 

         operation we had 100-and-some students.  We had 36 students 11 

         leave, 36 students graduated.  Of those 36 students, many 12 

         were first-time high school graduates from the family.  Of 13 

         those 36 students, I believe 20 of them went on to 14 

         post-secondary training.  Those are phenomenal results.  15 

         This year is our second year of operation.  We have now 16 

         expanded to 310 students currently.  And the amount of 17 

         expansion is only limited by funding, to be honest.  And the 18 

         success of the project really is on the shoulders of those 19 

         folks that we've selected in the local schools for our 20 

         mentors; people who show that they're very effective in 21 

         working with students, who are very interested in helping 22 

         them out and providing career opportunities for them.  23 

         There's a long list of activities they participate in.   24 

                      Don came back today from a visit to Western 25 
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         Michigan University where we took a group of students out 1 

         there to take a look at college.  We had students visit 2 

         GRCC, GVSU, Michigan State, and the list goes on.  We have 3 

         job shadow opportunities where we set up individual programs 4 

         where students go out and meet with people in career areas 5 

         that they're interested in.  We have speakers, we've had 6 

         speakers come in from GRCC.  Some of them I see in the 7 

         audience here, so just to sum up a few, because the list is 8 

         long.  And I want to stop speaking, because I do want the 9 

         three students to have an opportunity to introduce 10 

         themselves.  They're very different, each of them, in what 11 

         their goals and aspirations are.  They're all being very 12 

         successful.  We have two high school seniors and one 13 

         graduate.  And with that, I'll give the mic over to them. 14 

                      MS. TORREZ:  Good afternoon.  My name is Della 15 

         Torrez.  I'm a senior at Lee High School.  As most people 16 

         know, as being a senior going to high school is very, very 17 

         important, you know.  I'm just very overwhelmed, because I'm 18 

         very thankful for my teachers and for the programs of an 19 

         opportunity.  As he told you, WIA (phonetic) is the program 20 

         I was entered in.  It gave me an opportunity to go to free 21 

         night school, for summer school.  I was very, very behind.  22 

         I was considering dropping out, but my counselor was on me 23 

         and on me and on me.  She even went to my house one day and 24 

         she said, "Well, are you going to go?"  And I was, like, 25 
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         "Yeah, let's go" just to get her out -- just to get her out.  1 

                      And I'm very thankful for having teachers at my 2 

         school that are very involved, very caring.  My school is 3 

         very small, so almost everybody knows everybody.  I was 4 

         always thinking of just, like, going out and having fun on 5 

         the weekend and I would skip most days of school.  And they 6 

         ended up getting on me.  I entered the WIA program and my 7 

         attendance improved, my grades improved, and I'm graduated 8 

         this year. 9 

                      MR. SINGSON:  How is everybody doing today? 10 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Good. 11 

                      MR. SINGSON:  My name is Don Ramone Singson 12 

         (phonetic).  My story is a little different.  I really 13 

         didn't start off as bad as, you know, maybe, you know, 14 

         having the problem with, you know, dropping out, you know.  15 

         I had all my family, you know -- a lot of my family has went 16 

         to high school and went to college, you know.  And they're 17 

         pretty much have always told me, "You need to go to school, 18 

         you know.  You need to do this.  You need to do that."  For, 19 

         like, the biggest problem with me was, oh, yeah, you need to 20 

         go to school, you need to get an education, but I didn't 21 

         have direction.   22 

                      The WIA program that we have at East Kentwood I 23 

         felt like was an outstanding program, because the biggest 24 

         thing it did was it was able -- it put me in a program that 25 
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         I could see other kids going through the same thing I was 1 

         going through and to give me inspiration and to also give me 2 

         a direction to go through.  Yeah.  I was going to school, 3 

         you know.  I'm not late, you know.  I get to school on time.  4 

         And, you know, I have all that under control, but I needed a 5 

         direction.  I needed somebody to say, "Well, you need to do 6 

         this if you're interested in this.  And you need to go to 7 

         this."  It's not, "Okay.  I'll just go to school and just do 8 

         whatever and I can go into anything I need to go into."   9 

                      I came -- when I came -- I came from Ottawa Hills. 10 

         I started my school at Ottawa Hills as a freshman.  I got 11 

         good grades, you know.  I was a good student.  I was 12 

         involved.  I came to East Kentwood.  East Kentwood was 13 

         slightly different, you know.  I noticed the classes were 14 

         more -- a little more difficult, you know.  I had a harder 15 

         time, you know.  And I kind of felt myself going downhill, 16 

         and I didn't like that at all.  And a guy that helped me out 17 

         a lot was a teacher by the name of Carl Warfield (phonetic).  18 

         And I've been with him for three years.  I mean, to be 19 

         truthful, he's been like a father to me, you know.  He's 20 

         guided me on.  And, I mean, if he was here today he could 21 

         tell you, you know, I definitely made a big change.  Like I 22 

         said, I was never really a bad student or had a lot of 23 

         problems, you know.  I had my tough corners here and there, 24 

         you know, maybe with math class, but -- a math class or two.  25 
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                      But it came into -- there came a time just 1 

         recently before I was in the program that I was in the math 2 

         class that I needed to pass, you know.  I had to pass this 3 

         class.  And I was told that I was going to have to do -- 4 

         even though I hadn't taken a class, that I was going to have 5 

         to take a summer class, because we just got this new, you 6 

         know, rule in that you have to have four years of math and 7 

         English.  And I'm, like, you know, "I'm a senior.  What's 8 

         going on?"  So eventually I guess somebody went and they 9 

         changed it and seniors only had to have three years of math 10 

         instead of the four years of math, because we were so far 11 

         in.  So basically I had Algebra II in front of me, which was 12 

         crazy difficult.  And I ended up having a very hard time 13 

         with it, ended up having to take it over.  And basically it 14 

         was, "Okay.  You have this."  I had to take an online class.  15 

         It was my last step.  And I didn't have any problems any 16 

         other class.  It was just this one class.  I had to take 17 

         this online math class, which was actually harder than the 18 

         regular class to graduate.  I had all my -- I actually had 19 

         two extra credits than I needed to graduate.   20 

                      And basically, when this program came to the 21 

         school, you know, my mentor, Mr. Warfield, told me that he 22 

         was chosen to be one of the mentors for the program and that 23 

         I should get into it.  I got into this program.  And after 24 

         this, every day after we had our meeting, you know, I would 25 
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         work on the class.  One of the other mentors that we have 1 

         there happened to be a math teacher.  And I felt like maybe 2 

         if this program never would have came to my school that, you 3 

         know, I may not be, you know, in the same area as I am right 4 

         now to graduate.  I ended up passing the math class and I'm 5 

         on my way to graduate, you know.   6 

                      I've been accepted to a school in Belleville, 7 

         Michigan, the Michigan Institute of Aeronautics Technology.  8 

         And I'm going to be -- I'm successful, and I'm proud to have 9 

         a program at my school, at a school like Kentwood that's 10 

         going to help kids, because we have a lot of kids that have 11 

         problems at home and stuff, but we have a lot of kids that 12 

         just don't have direction, that just need to be pointed in 13 

         the right way to go and do what they want to do.  Because we 14 

         have kids that, you go, "Wow, this kid was successful in 15 

         high school and this kid was smart and got these scores, you 16 

         know.  But, you know, why is this kid not working right now?  17 

         Why is this kid into alcohol?  Why is this kid into drugs?"  18 

         It's because this kid didn't have directions.  He didn't 19 

         have a mentor to direct him in the right area, you know.  We 20 

         say these kids -- certain kids that have these problems, 21 

         "This kid had successful parents.  This kid" -- "this was a 22 

         rich kid, you know.  How could this happen to him?"  Because 23 

         maybe the parents left up to the kid a little too much on 24 

         what this kid was going to do.  And sometimes we need to 25 
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         have teachers involved to point the kids in the right way. 1 

                      And programs like this -- I'm going to end it now. 2 

         Programs like this are just -- are great programs to have in 3 

         the school.  And I think it should continue to be in all 4 

         schools, and it should definitely continue to have it.  5 

         Thank you very much. 6 

                      MR. ALEXANDER:  Hello everybody.  My name is James 7 

         Alexander.  I am a former dropout.  I happened to drop out 8 

         in my junior year because of personal family problems I had 9 

         with my family.  I was out of school for maybe two, three 10 

         years working at a factory job.  And at that time I just 11 

         kept -- I had a constant thought that this is not what I'm 12 

         satisfied with.  This is not enough for me.   13 

                      So I happened to return to school at the Godwin 14 

         Learning Center.  It's the alternative school they have to 15 

         help kids to make up their grades.  And at this Godwin 16 

         Learning Center they have the WIA program set up, and I 17 

         found it real helpful for me, 'cause it gave me opportunity 18 

         to make -- like the state got the common theme going on, 19 

         just making connections with the teachers and the director 20 

         that they have there, you know.  While you're making these 21 

         connections, you know, you're making -- you're actually 22 

         gaining another role model.  Everybody we have over here is 23 

         you've got role models all the time, but you might not 24 

         always have a positive role model.  So with this program 25 
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         it's helped me to get a positive role model where I can keep 1 

         myself on the right track and continue to go about and do 2 

         things that I need to do.  And I actually have graduated 3 

         from the program.  I'm currently at GRCC and I'm taking 4 

         other classes for secondary education.  Thank you. 5 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you all.  6 

         Okay.  Next up we representatives from Lighthouse Academy, 7 

         principal Heidi Cate and some of her students.  We have a 8 

         parent.  Excuse me. 9 

                      MS. CATE:  That's okay.  We thought we'd add a 10 

         little mix to it and bring a parent, actually a wonderful 11 

         parent who will talk -- parent-guardian who will talk about 12 

         her student, and I want to make sure she has time.  But good 13 

         afternoon.  It's a pleasure to be here.  It's certainly been 14 

         an inspiring afternoon already.  And what a wonderful 15 

         resource network that we have here.  But there is much work 16 

         to be done.  As we hear, there are many students yet to be 17 

         reached.  And Lighthouse Academy is privileged to be part of 18 

         the community and part of the continuum of services that are 19 

         available.   20 

                      Kind of a little history probably would be good in 21 

         terms of talking about Lighthouse, because it tells you 22 

         probably the center core of what it's about and what it's 23 

         trying to do.  A long time ago it seems now at this point 24 

         about five or six years ago I was privileged to be part as a 25 
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         community agency member from Wedgewood part of the Kent 1 

         Intervention Team that has been talked about today.  And 2 

         there are actually many other members who have spoken today 3 

         who are a part of that team as well.  And through that 4 

         community collaboration it became clearer and clearer that 5 

         there was a certain subset of students who did not have many 6 

         options in our community, and that was the expelled students 7 

         in our county.  And so, thus, Lighthouse Academy was dreamed 8 

         up to help serve those students.   9 

                      There's actually a kind of a long history of 10 

         program development that I'll make it short just to say that 11 

         there was a lot of work done.  There was a community 12 

         collaborative group that continued to plug away every month 13 

         meeting for two years, talking about the idea of what might 14 

         help these students in our community.  We certainly knew 15 

         about the need, and I know that what I will kind of resist 16 

         doing today is sharing the data.  I think that we've 17 

         certainly heard a lot about dropout statistics and all of 18 

         the factors behind that.  And certainly I think the story is 19 

         best told by some of the students themselves and some of the 20 

         things that they struggle with.  So I will not do that 21 

         today.  But I would like to say that I am very proud of our 22 

         community and their effort to work together for the entire 23 

         body of students.  And particularly the expelled students do 24 

         pose a particular challenge, I think, for our community.  25 
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         They certainly I would consider are at a very high risk for 1 

         dropout.  We do find that most of our students that we have 2 

         referred to the Lighthouse Academy who are expelled are 3 

         students that are in the upper end of middle school, that 4 

         eighth grade level or ninth grade.  And that really makes up 5 

         about 80 to 85 percent of our referrals each year.  I think 6 

         that's critical and really important to understand because, 7 

         as was shared earlier, the compulsory attendance age of 16 8 

         is something that becomes really critical.  If you look at 9 

         the fact that a student might be expelled for an entire year 10 

         already has a pattern that's very typically consists of some 11 

         truancy and that might be chronic in nature, multiple 12 

         suspensions and even previous expulsions, it is very 13 

         difficulty to kind of dig yourself out of that hole.  And I 14 

         think many parents and students certainly feel that after an 15 

         expulsion, especially with an older student in eighth or 16 

         ninth grade who's getting close to that 16-year mark. 17 

                      So with that in mind, I think that it's been 18 

         critical to have an effort in the expulsion area.  And 19 

         Lighthouse Academy opened its doors in January 2005.  It was 20 

         funded initially as an alternative high school initiative 21 

         project by the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation that has a 22 

         national effort to increase highly effective high schools 23 

         for at risk students.  And then there were some local 24 

         foundations who actually are represented here today that 25 
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         were rallied around the effort, caught the vision and helped 1 

         us to open.  And we're so very grateful for them, and all 2 

         the students were as well. 3 

                      At that first year, we were very small.  We served 4 

         12 high school students from ninth through twelfth grade.  5 

         And we really, you know, had a very interesting time.  We 6 

         learned a lot.  We really -- I think the biggest challenge 7 

         for us is that, even though we did have some national kind 8 

         of markers to shoot for, there really was not a lot of kind 9 

         of programs for us to model ourselves after.  And even 10 

         though that was challenging, I thought it was actually maybe 11 

         one of the assets too of the beginnings of Lighthouse 12 

         Academy, because it really forced us to look at 13 

         nontraditional approaches to the students and to really 14 

         focus in, and I think it's been said earlier, on the needs 15 

         that are communicated from the students themselves and the 16 

         families or other support networks of these students and 17 

         really valuing their input.  I think that's so critical to 18 

         not assume that they don't have a sense of what they might 19 

         need.  They may not communicate it very well at first, and I 20 

         think sometimes that has to do with what we've talked about.  21 

         We've heard a lot on the positive end of relationship 22 

         building.  But what I experience is that with many of these 23 

         students and families that there are a lot of barriers to 24 

         building relationships at first.  And so it takes a lot of 25 
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         patience and tenacity to stick that out, but to really 1 

         believe in them.   2 

                      We had a model that we adopted the first year of 3 

         opening, and that was we would believe in the students until 4 

         they believed in themselves.  And I think that became 5 

         critical for them to really engage with us and believe that 6 

         we were going to stick it out with them and that we were not 7 

         going to become infuriated by their behaviors and expel them 8 

         as well.  Then where would they go?  So after that first 9 

         year a couple of the success markers that we quite honestly 10 

         were as astounded ourselves about as probably the community 11 

         was was that they increased in two significant areas; one 12 

         was that the average GPA across those 12 students that first 13 

         year was a 1.9, and they had increased to a 3.8 by the end 14 

         of that first year.  And that was with curricula that meets 15 

         state standards.  And that was pretty amazing to us.  We did 16 

         a lot of surveying trying to figure out, you know, what was 17 

         that about.  And it was about a lot of the things that you 18 

         have talked about today; relationships, making the curricula 19 

         relevant.   20 

                      The students tended to say things that are really 21 

         kind of hard to put in the research journal, so to speak, 22 

         but are critical to them.  And that is things like, "When we 23 

         come in, you don't just get to the subjects.  You talk to us 24 

         about our day, about our evening.  You care.  If I come in 25 
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         and I'm upset, you don't automatically get down on me.  You 1 

         ask what's going on."  So really basic things, but really 2 

         are so important to our students.  And I think the families 3 

         found that as well.  We didn't see them as being a nuisance. 4 

         If they came into the school day, we assumed that they had 5 

         something to say that was important or that was really of 6 

         value for us to listen about.  I always say to parents that, 7 

         "You are the expert on your child, not me.  And I'm here to 8 

         learn from you."  And I think that gives them a sense of 9 

         being an equal partner at the table.  So it's these things 10 

         that are really about the fabric of the day-to-day life of 11 

         the classroom I think that make a big difference to the 12 

         kids. 13 

                      The Lighthouse mission really is to continue to 14 

         serve the expelled students in our county, to get them to 15 

         the point where they are stabilized, perhaps going on to -- 16 

         back to their school districts, perhaps to a different 17 

         program because they're clearer, as many of these young 18 

         people have said today, in terms of what they would like to 19 

         do with their future, and/or that they may decide to stay 20 

         with us for awhile because of the fact that maybe there's a 21 

         lot of things beyond the school day that they're dealing 22 

         with.  23 

                      Some of the best practices that I would say, you 24 

         know, if I were kind of to become the, know, research 25 
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         reporter a moment here, we do a lot of surveying and data 1 

         gathering on the kids beyond just the personal relationship 2 

         building.  And some of the things that we have found that 3 

         have been consistent the past four years that I'd really 4 

         like to talk about are that we think it's critical that our 5 

         staff are trained to be solution-focused rather than 6 

         problem-focused in everything that they do; meaning that I 7 

         think there's a critical piece in terms of attitude and 8 

         perception of our students.  And the attitude and perception 9 

         that we insist on and when we hire staff is that they 10 

         believe the students have the ability, despite the fact they 11 

         may come in with all E's or no credits, a long history of 12 

         behavioral problems that we believe that it is our job to 13 

         figure out how to have them be successful; that, yes, they 14 

         need to engage.  We can't, you know, have them not in a 15 

         seat, but really the burden is on us to find the right 16 

         interventions.  And with that attitude, I think that we find 17 

         that most students begin believing in themselves, because 18 

         they get it that somebody believes in them. 19 

                      The other thing is that the curricula is very 20 

         individually planned; meaning that we do not prescript 21 

         classes at Lighthouse Academy.  We assess them very 22 

         intensively.  We do both a skills-based assessment, we look 23 

         at and carefully review the cumulative record, but we also 24 

         do a full biopsychosocial review on them.  We have social 25 
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         workers who do that.  And then we have a holistic plan and 1 

         strategy that's put together.  And we focus very much on 2 

         strengths-based planning.  It's not that there aren't 3 

         problems but, if the kids don't believe that they have the 4 

         strength to work with, which I believe every student does, 5 

         it's very hard to feel motivated to address the issues.  And 6 

         so that's kind of been our approach.   7 

                      One other thing I think is critical is 8 

         developing -- and I think this has been said before -- and 9 

         continuing to include in ongoingly the multisystemic group 10 

         of folks that may be involved with the child.  It is not 11 

         unusual for us in our nine-week comprehensive student plan 12 

         to have a probation officer sitting there and/or a 13 

         caseworker along with our school social worker with 14 

         clinicians and therapists either from our own group or from 15 

         other agencies in the community to have, of course, the 16 

         teacher.  And we even have our office manager who's become 17 

         quite adept at mentoring our kids, and so she's involved in 18 

         some of the student learning plans.  It's really about what 19 

         works for the kid.  And that is done ongoingly, and there is 20 

         a revamped plan.  In other words, if we know that we're not 21 

         doing something that's working, we change it.  And that's 22 

         critical.  We don't just stick with the same plan if it's 23 

         not working. 24 

                      The last piece I would like to say, and I'm going 25 
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         to introduce my guest who I want to make sure she has time, 1 

         is that I think it's critical to have all of these support 2 

         pieces for the student involved, you know.  We talked about 3 

         or we heard a student talk about having a mentor involved.  4 

         What I think is critical is that we not let go of those 5 

         pieces that are so critical to the student, including any of 6 

         folks that might be considered family.  I think it's really 7 

         tempting to get overwhelmed with that and to think that, you 8 

         know, we're not going to deal with that, that's part of 9 

         outside of the school day.  But what we've found is really 10 

         effective with our students who have such a need for the 11 

         more supports the better, so to speak, it has been critical 12 

         that we reach out to that family ongoingly, even if they're 13 

         resistant until they participate.  And I'm happy to say that 14 

         I cannot think of a family at the end of this school year 15 

         that we do not have participating in some way, shape or form 16 

         in their student learning plan.  And actually I'm happy to 17 

         say many of them begin calling us rather than us initiating 18 

         those phone calls for updates.  And I think we need not give 19 

         up on those things; that that's really critical that the 20 

         family no matter what we say or how difficult the situation 21 

         may be are critical to the student's success.  And really 22 

         seeing them is part of the student's life and part of the 23 

         school domain is important.   24 

                      So with no further ado, I'm going to introduce a 25 
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         very nontraditional family member of one of our students who 1 

         has just been an inspiration to me.  She really is a hero, 2 

         in my mind.  And with saying all that, and I'm sure now 3 

         she's all embarrassed, but I just need to say that she is 4 

         completely awesome, Nancy. 5 

                      MS. MACON:  I know we're running out of time, and 6 

         I'm long-winded, so I've got a text here hopefully that will 7 

         help.  Good afternoon.  My name is Nancy Macon (phonetic).  8 

         I'm the grandmother of a student enrolled at Lighthouse 9 

         Academy.  About this time last year I became aware of 10 

         growing friction in my son's home between the parents and my 11 

         grandson Ian.  He was running away constantly, usually after 12 

         a heated argument.  I'd stop by to see him and Ian was 13 

         almost never home anymore.  I was only told that he was out 14 

         with his friends. 15 

                      My son and his wife had become so frustrated with 16 

         him that they seemed to have given up trying to talk with 17 

         Ian to find solutions to problems or look within to see if 18 

         there were things they may have been doing to exacerbate the 19 

         situation.  They were just letting him go and, in the end, 20 

         didn't even try to find him when he'd be gone for days at a 21 

         time. 22 

                      These things are never only one person's fault.  23 

         Yes, teenagers are rebellious.  In fact, they're 24 

         infuriating.  I've known this over this last year again.  25 
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         But they're our children, after all.  And I think many 1 

         parents forget just how ill-behaved they were before they 2 

         matured and became paragons of virtue.  I know.  This is my 3 

         son and grandson I'm talking about.   4 

                      Ian was in a terrible state when I first found 5 

         him.  He was downtown at a place called Skeletones, a coffee 6 

         shop hangout spot that's usually flooded with teenagers.  A 7 

         lot of these kids have run away from home.  In my 8 

         conversations with them over time, a common denominator 9 

         seemed to be parents who were either alcoholic or drug 10 

         addicted or those who were rarely home due to a couple of 11 

         jobs they had to make ends to meet.  Sometimes it involved a 12 

         stepparent that they couldn't get along with.  These 13 

         children clung to one another for support, shared a smoke or 14 

         a cup of instant noodles they'd ordered at the counter up 15 

         front, or somehow jimmied the pool table coin device to get 16 

         a free game of pool out of the machine. 17 

                      I watched as some of these kids panhandled from 18 

         passers by.  Ian told me that he sometimes looked through 19 

         garbage cans at pizza places after hours to find something 20 

         to eat.  They did with what they had and used their wits to 21 

         survive.  This ragtag disheveled group reminded me a little 22 

         of the Lost Boys in "Peter Pan."  The whole scene reminded 23 

         me of a verse in the Bible that goes something like this.  24 

         I'm only a mere Catholic, so I'm not chapter and verse like 25 
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         my Protestant brothers.  Forgive me.  But from my memory, 1 

         "Better a millstone be placed around their necks and cast 2 

         into the sea than the fate that awaits them if they harm one 3 

         hair on a child's head."   4 

                      Where were these kids' families to protect them?  5 

         These are scenes you see on the news in big cities or in 6 

         Third World countries, not in your hometown, and certainly 7 

         not in your own family.   8 

                      When I first encountered Ian, I thought I was only 9 

         there to get him to come home to his family to work out 10 

         their problems.  This is not what happened at all.  Ian 11 

         refused to go back home and, inconceivably, his parents 12 

         seemed to agree with his take on things.  There had been so 13 

         much turmoil, so many things said in the heat of the moment 14 

         on both sides, and no one was backing down.  Though I was 15 

         dumbfounded that any parent could simply throw in the towel 16 

         on their child, I saw the reality of the situation and knew 17 

         I couldn't let Ian simply wander the streets.  I had loved 18 

         this kid for over 16 years, and I wouldn't have been able to 19 

         go on with my life as acting as if it weren't my problem.  20 

         We're all each other's keepers, especially family. 21 

                      After days and days of meeting him downtown, 22 

         handing over a few dollars and pleading each time for him to 23 

         come home and spend the night with me, Ian finally accepted 24 

         and stayed overnight at my place for the first time.  He 25 
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         asked to be dropped off downtown in the morning, but he'd be 1 

         there after work for me to pick him up.  This became our 2 

         pattern.  And by increments, he soon was a full-fledged 3 

         member of the home.   4 

                      Ian's attendance at Lighthouse had been sketchy 5 

         for awhile prior to him coming to live with me.  I told him 6 

         that I expected him to be in school every scheduled day.  7 

         The staff was welcoming to me, valued my input, listened to 8 

         concerns regarding Ian's needs and future, and helped me in 9 

         understanding how I could best help.  Another thing I found 10 

         reassuring was how his counselors and teachers often called 11 

         me to keep me abreast of Ian's progress or of his slip ups.  12 

         I found the team element to be very effective.  They all 13 

         encouraged Ian with love and defined expectations that had 14 

         been inconsistently applied at best by his parents.   15 

                      The bonding that took place between Ian and his 16 

         teachers was key in helping him begin to perform to his 17 

         potential in a school setting.  He trusted them, felt that 18 

         they believed in him, and so he wanted to please them.  That 19 

         makes perfect sense to me. 20 

                      One of Ian's big obstacles in public school had 21 

         been feeling bored and unchallenged.  He also talked about 22 

         feeling lost in the crowd.  The teacher he paired with at 23 

         Lighthouse on a one-to-one basis made an enormous difference 24 

         in his general overall outlook.  Ian still had a long way to 25 
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         go, but I could see the change in his behavior at home and 1 

         in the things he said.  He talked about his teacher, told me 2 

         that he was an artist, very old -- he was 56 -- and did some 3 

         cool things with art.  He also mocked this man's attire, 4 

         saying that he hated his polo shirts, khakis and loafers.  I 5 

         chuckled inside to think that Ian, the fashion plate, was 6 

         critiquing anyone else's ensemb.  Ian's idea of cool is 7 

         skintight tattered black jeans, worn T-shirts and Army issue 8 

         scuffed up boots.  Top that off with either a Mohawk or 9 

         shaved head, depending on his mood, and you've got yourself 10 

         a candidate for the next cover of GQ magazine.   11 

                      Though Ian's critical appraisal -- through his 12 

         critical appraisal of this man's garments, I saw what was 13 

         really admiration.  He needed a man to look up to, and found 14 

         just that in this dedicated teacher.  He told Ian that if he 15 

         did what was expected of him at school he would take him on 16 

         a sailing outing during the summer.  I heard about this over 17 

         and over again throughout the months.  If he had not turned 18 

         in an assignment on time, he'd say that he'd blown it and 19 

         say that the sailing trip was probably out of the question 20 

         now.  He was so defeatist.  I'd tell him to get his 21 

         assignment done, apologize, try not to let it happen again 22 

         and see what happened next. 23 

                      Ian got a call last July and went with this 24 

         precious man out sailing on Lake Macatawa for the day.  I 25 
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         have a framed picture of Captain Ian at the helm.  He still 1 

         talks about that trip.   2 

                      These children need understanding.  They come to 3 

         this program because they've acted out in ways that couldn't 4 

         be tolerated in conventional schools, and rightly so.  Many 5 

         times there are underlying long-term issues at home that 6 

         cause these kids to inappropriately act out in expressing 7 

         their frustration and feelings of rejection and 8 

         worthlessness.  Policies need to be crafted to take these 9 

         factors into account, or we will lose even more children to 10 

         dismal futures, becoming statistics, burdens to society 11 

         instead of productive and creative human beings who add to 12 

         the fabric of life around us, helping to shepherd the next 13 

         generation.   14 

                      When Ian lived at home with his parents, he 15 

         learned to run from problems, which never solved anything.  16 

         It only made matters more intractable.  His opinions and 17 

         feelings didn't matter there, and that was that.  In the 18 

         last year he's changed in so many ways.  He confronts an 19 

         issue and most times owns the fact that if he fails to 20 

         follow -- he owns the fact if he fails to follow through on 21 

         a commitment.  He doesn't lash out in frustration so much 22 

         anymore.  He knows he can trust those who have circled 23 

         around him to help him on his way.  He has seen that you can 24 

         make mistakes, own up to them and still be listened to and 25 
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         valued.   1 

                      Ian had a breakthrough recently.  At a meeting I 2 

         attended with Lighthouse staff, he asked if perhaps he could 3 

         get into some deeper counseling.  I almost choked.  It had 4 

         been obvious to anyone involved with him at Lighthouse that 5 

         this guy needs to address some deep emotional issues that 6 

         sabotage his performance at times.  I was so stunned.  He'd 7 

         been completely adverse to the suggestion of therapy before 8 

         this.  I just sat there thinking, "Yes; yes, you are worthy, 9 

         Ian.  Take what you need and help yourself heal."  That 10 

         moment was a long time coming, but it wouldn't have come at 11 

         all if it were not for the teachers, counselor and principal 12 

         that had made him feel over time that he was a valuable 13 

         human being with unique talents and skills to offer the 14 

         world.  15 

                      He used to feel that he was unimportant or, worse 16 

         yet, a burden to those around him.  But that is their shame, 17 

         not his.  Ian could see that these devoted people were not 18 

         going to give up on or abandon him, even with all of his 19 

         imperfections.   20 

                      With great patience, humor, encouragement and 21 

         love, coupled with firm expectations and goals expected to 22 

         be met, the staff of Lighthouse helps change lives.  I 23 

         believe that without having had the beacon shown by these 24 

         staff members to guide Ian's course I might have been 25 
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         recounting a very different outcome today.  I cannot thank 1 

         them enough for their support and care of these children, 2 

         our children, who so desperately need to believe in 3 

         themselves again.  Thank you. 4 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  We were scheduled to go until 5 

         6:00 o'clock, and we do have quite a few people left to 6 

         testify.  I know some of our panelists are going to need to 7 

         leave.  But as I said at the beginning, we'll stay and 8 

         continue to record the testimony to provide it to the 9 

         legislature.  So we will keep going.  And if any of you need 10 

         to leave we, of course, understand that and respect your 11 

         time.  Next up we have a couple representatives of 12 

         alternative schools, principal Donna Hendershot (phonetic) 13 

         and teacher Kim Fife (phonetic). 14 

                      MR. FIFE:  I've listened to some good stuff here 15 

         tonight.  One thing that educators are great at is using the 16 

         "R" word.  You all remember, you're all old enough to 17 

         remember the reading, writing and arithmetic.  Well, now 18 

         we've got them spelled better now and it's rigor, relevance, 19 

         relationships.  You've heard all that stuff about 20 

         relationships being so critical, and I agree with all that.  21 

         In fact, I kind of consider myself a relationship specialist 22 

         at my school.  It's what I have to establish before I can do 23 

         any of the other stuff.   24 

                      But I want to add two more "R" words for you, the 25 
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         two most critical, I think.  And you've seen them, but we 1 

         haven't used them yet:  Resiliency and responsibility.  2 

         These kids that come up here are so resilient.  They bounce 3 

         back.  It's not the word dropout that I'm concerned about, 4 

         it's the word drop back in that I'm really concerned about.  5 

         And we have to have those kind of programs for kids.  We've 6 

         got to be ready when they are.  Sometimes my job is waiting 7 

         for them. 8 

                      I'm highly qualified in five subject areas, and 9 

         that's all well and good.  But I pride myself most on the 10 

         ideas that I try to teach the kids that there's always 11 

         another way.  Resiliency and bouncing back is critical.  12 

         They have to be able to sit down and look at a transcript.  13 

         And I'll sit with them and I'll point them in a new 14 

         direction if they screwed this up.  They have to also accept 15 

         responsibility.  They can't continue to say, "It's their 16 

         fault."  I can't tell you how many kids look for somebody to 17 

         blame.  And I try to explain to them that they will never 18 

         truly be free and never move on with their lives until they 19 

         are able to understand that I can only control what I can 20 

         control, and that is myself.  And I have to take care of 21 

         myself and I'm responsible for everything, and I've got to 22 

         really, really focus on what I can do for myself to stay on 23 

         track.  So sometimes my job is just that, being there to be 24 

         helpful to them when they're ready.  25 
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                      I agree with all the stuff about relationships.  1 

         There's two places where I kind of cry and get all starry 2 

         eyed; movies where people abuse dogs like "My Dog Skip" and 3 

         silly things like that, and our high school graduation when 4 

         I see these kids finally walk down and grab their diploma.  5 

         All of our staff is there to see that.  It's the key to the 6 

         whole thing.  It's why we do what we do.  And without making 7 

         it too much more winded here, I'm going to introduce you to 8 

         my principal.  Thank you. 9 

                      MS. HENDERSHOT:  Hi.  I'm Donna Hendershot, and 10 

         I'm principal at North Kent High School, and I've been there 11 

         for 13 years.  And I taught there for eight years before 12 

         that, so I've been around alternative ed for a long time.  13 

         And what I wanted to talk about before, and I'm a data 14 

         person so, while Heidi didn't do data, I'll probably do 15 

         data.  I wanted to look at the problem, and the first 16 

         problem that we have to look at for our students is how at 17 

         risk they are.  And in this handout I gave you, the last two 18 

         pages are from our at risk survey.  And every student who 19 

         attends North Kent at their enrollment completes this 20 

         survey, and this survey has our data, which I'm not going to 21 

         go over, which is yours to look at, since 2001. 22 

                      The majority of our students when they go down 23 

         this sheet, which is a "yes" and "no" sheet, it's not 24 

         scientific.  They get to answer, and they don't have to 25 



 76

         necessarily tell the truth, although I find that most of 1 

         them do.  Most of our kids in our programs at North Kent, 2 

         it's very typical of all alternative programs, have six to 3 

         15 checkmarks.  So they have between six and 15 at risk 4 

         issues, and that's their social issues.  The next issue is 5 

         their learning issues.  And North Kent gives all students as 6 

         they come in the Star Reading and Math Assessment, and that 7 

         happens within a few weeks of enrollment.   8 

                      On this chart paper I gave is the results of this 9 

         year.  We had 63 new students this year enrolled at North 10 

         Kent.  And it shows the majority of these students included 11 

         in this survey have already completed one full year of high 12 

         school.  We only took what we call four true freshmen this 13 

         year at the beginning of the year, so all these kids have 14 

         had at least a half a year to one year of high school behind 15 

         them.  And you're going to see that 40 percent of those 16 

         students were tested at below the 25th percentile in math 17 

         and 29 percent below the 25th percentile in reading.  So we 18 

         have a huge challenge as we deal with these kids, not only 19 

         socially, but they've lost a whole lot of learning by the 20 

         time they get to us. 21 

                      Then I got to thinking about alternative ed here 22 

         in West Michigan.  And I've been lucky to be part of a group 23 

         of alternative educators for at risk programs that have met.  24 

         We've met for over ten years, and we've formed a task force.  25 
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         And this year there are 27 alternative programs in Kent 1 

         County we communicate with, and six additional alternative 2 

         programs that have joined us when they heard about our 3 

         meetings and what we were doing to improve our programs and 4 

         advocate for alternative ed.  And these other six programs 5 

         are from Allegan, Ionia and Ottawa County, which represents 6 

         33 programs.  And then since we're talking about dropouts, I 7 

         thought, you know, our 33 programs, how many kids do we 8 

         represent and how many students do we graduate?  So last 9 

         week I sent out a quick little e-mail and held my breath to 10 

         find out what I'd get.  19 schools responded.  And I 11 

         discovered that those 19 schools represent 2,087 students in 12 

         the West Michigan area, and that we hope we will graduate.  13 

         And if you're alternative ed, you know it's always hope you 14 

         will graduate right to the last day, 464 graduates.  These 15 

         don't include GED recipients, because now we know that GED's 16 

         aren't really graduates.  And if it were not for alterative 17 

         high schools, this dropout rate that we're worried about 18 

         would even be higher than it already is. 19 

                      Our alternative schools have one thing in common.  20 

         None of us are afraid of accountability, although frequently 21 

         we're accused of it.  But that accountability for us has to 22 

         be value added.  And once again, I go back to our Star 23 

         Reading and Math scores.  And a few samples from some of the 24 

         students that have already finished that are going to 25 
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         graduate this year, I looked at their entry score and their 1 

         graduate exit score, and I gave you a little chart for four 2 

         students as a sample.  And it showed that -- and I used 3 

         grade equivalents, because sometimes those are easier to 4 

         understand for people.  You know, we have a student that 5 

         went from -- he came in at a fourth grade math level and he 6 

         exited at tenth grade math level.  He came in at a fourth 7 

         grade reading level and he exited at eleventh grade reading 8 

         level.  This is added value for our students.  We're doing 9 

         our job.  And the chart gives you an example.  I'm not going 10 

         to read it to you.  It's only a small sample, but I think 11 

         you'd find that same demonstration across almost all 12 

         alternative schools.   13 

                      The next thing I did to present to you guys is I 14 

         walked around the building and I said, "What do we do" -- 15 

         "what are the things we do that keep you in school that your 16 

         previous school didn't do?"  And in there is a long list of 17 

         things.  One is Payoff Project, which is a program that's 18 

         unique to North Kent.  Once every eight days -- we've done 19 

         it over the years every five days, every six days, it 20 

         changes -- we stop what we're doing and the kids have a 21 

         major two-hour tutorial session.  The kids that are 22 

         achieving have an enhancement opportunity.  Everybody else 23 

         is in assistance.  And the goal is that every eight days 24 

         we're all caught up.  And that's the goal.  Things that they 25 
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         liked were easier to learn, smaller classes, teachers, 1 

         teaching style, more help understanding material, quarters, 2 

         you don't have to take so long to start over, mini term, 3 

         which is another alternative ed intensive sort of thing 4 

         where you stop what you're doing and for two, three, four, 5 

         five days do something totally different.  It could be 6 

         academic or it could be something as important to these kids 7 

         as -- well, Kim here, one of our most popular things was he 8 

         taught them to make boats.  And they had a block of wood and 9 

         some dowel and some canvass, and they had to figure the 10 

         ballast out and they had to float the sailboats, and it was 11 

         a very popular class.   12 

                      The kids say it's okay to fail.  That's important 13 

         for them to be in an atmosphere where you can fail and it's 14 

         okay; that alternative schools are tolerant of some of their 15 

         not happy habits, and we figure out how to help them work 16 

         with those unfortunate habits they have.  But the most 17 

         important thing that I thought is one of the students -- and 18 

         he's one of those true ninth graders that we got because -- 19 

         and the only reason I get a true ninth grader is because 20 

         they're going to be way too old in eighth grade because 21 

         they've been spending too much time in seventh grade and 22 

         eighth grade.  He liked the concept of multiple second 23 

         chances.  He was always getting a second chance.  As my 24 

         teachers say, that might be a third, fourth, fifth, sixth, 25 
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         seventh chance, but there was always a second chance.  And 1 

         then if they forgot their homework, they always had payoff 2 

         to turn it in, or some of the new things we're doing with 3 

         credit recovery during our mini terms.  There was always a 4 

         way to go back if you messed up and fix it. 5 

                      When I look at alternative programs I went to 6 

         three hours like Kim, relationships and that's what we do 7 

         best.  And I'm not going to spend a lot of time talking 8 

         about it.  But if you haven't been in an alternative 9 

         program, I would invite you to come to any alternative 10 

         program in Kent County, in West Michigan, and probably in 11 

         this state and you'll find that the one thing we're good at 12 

         is building relationships with our kid, building warm, 13 

         family relationships.  In fact, when I was walking around 14 

         asking for this list, I walked in one room and I said, "What 15 

         is it?"  And one little girl said, "I feel like I'm at home.  16 

         It's family."  And a young man went to argue with her, and 17 

         she says, "It may not be that way for you, but that's the 18 

         way it is for me," which means we haven't built our 19 

         relationship with that other young man the way we should 20 

         have yet.   21 

                      Rigor, over the past few years the majority of 22 

         high schools, like all high schools, have increased their 23 

         rigor.  One of the answers that we've done at North Kent to 24 

         try and address the rigor is what we call achievement-based 25 
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         classes.  We're throwing out the book.  Either you pass the 1 

         assessment or you don't pass the class.  I don't really care 2 

         how much homework you turn in.  I don't care how many days 3 

         you're here.  I don't care about any of that.  What I want 4 

         to know is did you learn the material and can you pass the 5 

         assessment we've designed for you to pass based on the 6 

         standards?  We took four or five classes to roll it out this 7 

         year, because this is a lot of work for teachers.  This is a 8 

         whole lot of work for teachers.  And we are just amazed that 9 

         the kids have figured out those assignments aren't given to 10 

         them just because we like to grade papers.  They're supposed 11 

         to learn from them, you know.  So it's been a really 12 

         positive experience.  And over the next couple of years 13 

         we're hoping to turn all the classes over to 14 

         achievement-based classes.  It was sort of scary and, 15 

         believe it or not, our attendance -- our daily average 16 

         attendance has gone up since we've said, "You don't have to 17 

         be here.  It's okay.  But you better pass the classes if 18 

         you're going to graduate." 19 

                      Teacher advisory is one of our bases.  We have a 20 

         teacher advisory, and you'll find that most alternative high 21 

         schools have a teacher advisory.  Earlier it was referred to 22 

         as an old-fashioned home room, but it's more than that.  23 

         It's much more.  We have curriculum for it.  For us in this 24 

         assessment, the students are expected to pass 100 percent of 25 



 82

         the standards at a 70 percent level or they don't get 1 

         credit.  And it's been very successful.   2 

                      This Michigan Merit Challenge is particularly 3 

         difficult for us because we have so many students that come 4 

         to us at a third grade and a fifth grade level with few 5 

         credits and multiple risk factors.  Then we are penalized 6 

         because we can't do it in four years, when in reality we 7 

         sometimes have only two, sometimes only one.  And then for 8 

         us what is the true definition of rigor?  In the past when 9 

         we moved a student from a low level math level and we got 10 

         them through one year of algebra, we were celebrating.  We 11 

         thought we'd really done a good job.  And now they're 12 

         telling us not only do we have to get them from a low level 13 

         of math, but we have to get them through Algebra I, geometry 14 

         and Algebra II, and the task seems overwhelming with the 15 

         resources we have.  And not that some of our kids can't do 16 

         Algebra II, because there is a percentage of them that are 17 

         going to breeze through.  Well, maybe not breeze, but 18 

         they're going to get through.  We'll drag them kicking and 19 

         shouting.   20 

                      The students need to be challenged but, if that 21 

         challenge becomes too overwhelming, they'll just shut down 22 

         and quit.  And we're very worried that the environment has 23 

         to be vital to back this rigor.   24 

                      Relevance, while some alternative programs are 25 
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         better at others at making the academic material relevant, 1 

         the relevance to us has always built into unique classes.  2 

         The life skills of making decisions, setting goals, taking 3 

         ownership for behavior, setting a table, playing euchre -- 4 

         we can't believe how many kids don't know how to play 5 

         euchre -- balancing a checkbook, learning to knit.  And we 6 

         had kids that learned to knit and discovered it helped 7 

         relieve their stress.  Crafting, cooking and many other 8 

         everyday life skills that many of us take for granted have 9 

         become part of our curriculum. 10 

                      We as teachers are often amazed when we do an 11 

         activity that we take for granted as an everyday experience 12 

         and one or two of our students will be amazed.  They've 13 

         never done that before, and it's something as simple as a 14 

         teacher taking a student to eat out at a sit-down restaurant 15 

         like an expensive place like Applebee's, and they've never 16 

         done that before.  They don't know how to deal with the 17 

         menu, they don't know how to deal with the ordering.  And 18 

         this is something that we've been able to do.  But with the 19 

         increased rigor, it's starting to fade away.  How do we do 20 

         the rigor and do those things that we do so well?   21 

                      So what needs to happen to support all these 22 

         dropouts and these programs?  I think more support and 23 

         collaboration from community agencies.  And Comstock Park 24 

         happens to be lucky enough to have KSSN, so North Kent is a 25 
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         very lucky school to have that resource, and I wish every 1 

         alterative school had that resource.  We need to ease the 2 

         state rules for more flexible time schedules for students.  3 

         It's not a minor thing to say our kids are not morning 4 

         students.  By third hour most of them are there.  More 5 

         second chance opportunities within the school day, like our 6 

         payoff project, like tutoring, like labs.  We have learning 7 

         labs.  If we put somebody now in a high end rigor class, we 8 

         match it up with a learning lab in that area.  So if they 9 

         have Algebra II, they're going to have a math lab to support 10 

         them.  So they have two hours to pass what is the one 11 

         hour -- or the one course requirement. 12 

                      And when they finally reach 18 and have one 13 

         credit, we have to have options that will allow that student 14 

         to achieve, possibly joint partnerships with community 15 

         colleges and alterative programs that are specifically 16 

         designed for that older population.  And as unpopular as 17 

         this suggestion will be, is a second path to a high school 18 

         diploma for students who will never need or have the 19 

         motivation to pass Algebra II.  These students have workers 20 

         are the backbone of the service industry economy.  And as a 21 

         parent, I would never accept a high school completion 22 

         certificate for my student, and the majority of my parents 23 

         wouldn't either.  The most important question I get at a new 24 

         student interview is, "Is this a real diploma?"  And I have 25 
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         to be -- I'm lucky enough to be able to say, "Yes.  We're 1 

         North Central accredited.  And a couple of years ago we won 2 

         a Michigan blue ribbon.  So, yes, this is a real diploma."  3 

         But that's important to our people. 4 

                      Alternative programs across the state are 5 

         providing an important service in dropout recovery.  6 

         Expanding that service and supporting it is in everyone's 7 

         best interest.  But this alternative education is in a 8 

         precarious position.  Under the current expectations, we 9 

         will never make AYP.  An average of 44 percent of our 10 

         graduates are fifth year seniors.  We don't make AYP.  11 

         Testing 95 percent of our students when there is a small at 12 

         risk population is very difficult.  All it takes is one or 13 

         two students to have a family crisis, run away, be 14 

         incarcerated or have that bipolar student go into a 15 

         depressive cycle and you don't meet the graduation 95 16 

         percent and you don't make AYP.  And I'm going to tell you 17 

         it happened at North Kent this year.  Three students went 18 

         into bottoming out during that testing window and we're 19 

         done.  We won't make AYP.  Irregardless if we ever got the 20 

         test scores where they needed to be now that we've adopted, 21 

         and last year with the MME was our first year not to make 22 

         AYP on test scores.  23 

                      Our students often do better on the second try, so 24 

         the idea of having this MME and holding the test to the 25 
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         second try, but some of this isn't our issue.  Some of this 1 

         is a national issue.  It's not a state issue.   2 

                      Alternative schools need to be held accountable 3 

         and to a higher standing creating a realistic accountability 4 

         system based on individual growth would be one answer.  But 5 

         as long as there is a one size fits all accountability 6 

         system, the deck is stacked against us.  As long as there 7 

         are superintendents overly concerned about test scores and 8 

         publicity surrounding district accreditation, the 9 

         alternative programs will be under fire.  As long as 10 

         districts have an attitude of, "Those are not our kids if 11 

         they don't live in our border," alternative schools are at 12 

         risk.  They need a choice.  As long as the rules surrounding 13 

         NCLB remain, the one school that has always been the one 14 

         haven for children left behind will be left behind and 15 

         possibly not exist.  It's already happening.  Where those 16 

         students will go is an unknown.  But what that 20 years in 17 

         alternative ed has taught me, they will not willingly go 18 

         back to the traditional high schools.  Thank you. 19 

                      MR. PRATT:  All right.  Next up we have Dr. Greg 20 

         Dykhouse, the director of academics for Black River Public 21 

         School.  And again to our panelists who have to leave, thank 22 

         you again for your time. 23 

                      DR. DYKHOUSE:  Good evening.  I thank you for the 24 

         invitation tonight to share some features about Black River 25 
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         Public School.  Our school located in Holland is a K through 1 

         12 school a few blocks south of Hope College.  We are 2 

         completing our twelfth year of operation, and next year we 3 

         will serve approximately 820 students, which will represent 4 

         more students than ever before.  I suppose in year 12 one 5 

         can do some reflecting and think back what has happened 6 

         during the first 12 years.  And I've been able to actually 7 

         find a few minutes to think about our first 12 years.   8 

                      And I'm greatly impressed with some of the solid 9 

         decisions that were made by the founding members and 10 

         community members in Holland.  I've been able to think of 11 

         these in terms of I would say conditions for student 12 

         success.  I have about 11 conditions here, not all of them 13 

         relate to students but would relate to some of the leaders 14 

         of the school.  But I think for the purposes of tonight we 15 

         would think about students.  And some of the programs in 16 

         place at Black River would include the following.  Black 17 

         River adopts a project-based learning program.  We call this 18 

         program Project Term.  Today and tomorrow in fact students 19 

         are wrapping up their second semester examinations.  And I 20 

         know some of you may know Holland, and you'll want to avoid 21 

         Holland today and tomorrow.  We're wrapping up tulip time.  22 

         But funny things happen to students on the lakeshore during 23 

         tulip time.  After the parades and the carnivals, believe it 24 

         or not they sort of check out and they're thinking about the 25 
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         beach and they're thinking about Lake Michigan.  And 1 

         historically it's been difficult to keep kids on task during 2 

         the final month of the school. 3 

                      Well, what we do during the final month of the 4 

         school is we put away our history book, we put away our 5 

         science books, and kids are involved in Project Term.  And 6 

         what this program includes would be students -- teachers 7 

         propose perhaps two or three courses.  We comprise a catalog 8 

         and then students will select courses out of this catalog.  9 

         And this is what they will do all day long or for half the 10 

         day for the four-week period.  What is gained by this?  11 

         Well, students see the academic material presented in a 12 

         different way.  They also see their teachers and instructors 13 

         in a different way.  And they might think, "My goodness, I 14 

         didn't know the history teacher was a photographer" or, "I 15 

         didn't know my English teacher really had a personality."  16 

         And this really connects kids to teachers in a new way and 17 

         they feel very good about school. 18 

                      We get a little delusional at the end of the year. 19 

         Probably the highlight of the year is our Project Term open 20 

         house.  This year it will be on Thursday evening, June 5.  21 

         It's the last evening of the school year.  And kids put 22 

         exhibitions of the work that they've done during Project 23 

         Term.  If it's been a course that they're in, the students 24 

         within the course will design a project or performance.  If 25 
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         students are doing individual independent studies, perhaps 1 

         they're job shadowing a veterinarian or finding out what 2 

         it's really like to be a nurse, they will put together some 3 

         sort of exhibition of what they know.  And this will be on 4 

         display during our open house.  And everyone is feeling so 5 

         good about this program, we almost think we should just keep 6 

         teaching through the summer.  But then we sober up and we 7 

         know that we need a break and students need a break as well. 8 

                      But Project Term has been very effective.  If you 9 

         were to ask the kids what is best part about Black River 10 

         Public School, they would say, "Oh, we love the Project 11 

         Term.  We kind of tolerate the two academic semesters in 12 

         order to get to Project Term."  And I suppose a challenge 13 

         for the educators would be, "How can we take some of this 14 

         Project Term excitement and infuse it during the academic 15 

         terms?" 16 

                      Another feature that we have at Black River is a 17 

         very evident service learning component.  Over the years the 18 

         State of Michigan has done a lot of things in promotion of 19 

         service learning.  Years ago some of you may remember a 20 

         program called the K-12 Philanthropy Project, what was an 21 

         attempt to get lessons into the classrooms to show service 22 

         learning.  And over the years this name has changed.  23 

         Learning to Give has been another name of this program.  Now 24 

         the program is known as The League.  Teachers at Black River 25 
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         have found that the lessons and the curriculum provided by 1 

         this program is not only consistent with Black River aims, 2 

         it's consistent also with state benchmarks.  If students are 3 

         doing the service learning, they are learning components 4 

         that the state would require them to learn.  And Black River 5 

         has gotten a lot of recognition of involving kids in 6 

         community service.  Elementary students, middle school 7 

         students, and high school students all have service learning 8 

         requirements that they have to meet.  And again, this gives 9 

         students -- would hit on the relevance bit that we've heard 10 

         a little bit tonight.   11 

                      Another feature, a third feature that I would 12 

         emphasize, is the size of the school.  There is a lot of 13 

         scholarship out there.  Big schools, small schools, and you 14 

         will find all kinds of opinion.  I know as a teacher I much 15 

         prefer to work at a class that has 18 to 20 students in it.  16 

         I get to know the kids well, they get to know me well.  I 17 

         can work on their weaknesses and we can emphasize the 18 

         strengths that they have.  And this has been very effective 19 

         for Black River.  Also the fact that we have everything on 20 

         one campus.  We have a site-based management.  Everyone 21 

         knows everyone.  And that leads to a real comfortable 22 

         situation for the students.  Students want to come to 23 

         school.  They know that their teacher will take time to talk 24 

         with them about things other than history or mathematics.  25 
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         And this is a good feature for learning. 1 

                      A couple other points that I'll mention here just 2 

         so that the policymakers here this would be also just a 3 

         general commitment to the liberal arts.  From the early 4 

         years, Black River said we would commit to core subjects.  5 

         All kids take classes in English, history, mathematics, 6 

         science and Spanish language.  That was a challenge, because 7 

         historically the United States has not treated foreign 8 

         language with great emphasis.  In addition, students are 9 

         required to take either visual art or musical arts.   10 

                      This aspect of Black River is what drew me to the 11 

         school.  When as the school was opening, I saw that there 12 

         was going to be visual arts would be a strong part of Black 13 

         River.  As a high school student, art was not part of 14 

         curriculum.  If you were in art, there were a lot of things 15 

         you didn't do.  And I think getting kids to see art, to 16 

         everyone compete and participate in the music program, makes 17 

         for a healthy learning environment.   18 

                      Yes, I would invite all of you to come out to 19 

         Black River at some time and check out the school.  The 20 

         graduation rate has remained in the 90's.  The purpose of 21 

         Black River was not to address a dropout problem 12 years 22 

         ago.  I think the purpose of Black River was to create 23 

         situations in which kids wanted to come to school and be an 24 

         active part of school.  And I think the students have been 25 
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         very pleased, and they would report to you that they enjoy 1 

         coming to Black River.  Thank you for your time. 2 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  Next up we have Louise Wilson. 3 

                      MS. WILSON:  I'm sorry.  I didn't plan on 4 

         speaking.  I haven't got my makeup on.  But I'm really upset 5 

         to come here.  And I thought we were being invited to a 6 

         community forum where people were going to input things.  I 7 

         didn't realize I was going to sit here for two hours being 8 

         told what a great job we're doing, because I sat here for 9 

         two hours and I'm going, "Well, I guess we don't have a 10 

         problem, because everybody's doing such a bang-up job."  I 11 

         don't come from this culture, obviously you can hear from my 12 

         voice.  I come from a different culture which says, if we're 13 

         going to fix a problem, first of all we have to admit we 14 

         have one.  I don't know if you have it in AA or something 15 

         like that.  All right.  We have a problem.  Okay.  I don't 16 

         care how many people stand up here and say what a bang-up 17 

         job we're doing making relationships with the kids.   18 

                      Here's the thing, I teach in high school in Grand 19 

         Rapids.  The kids who come in have poor skills.  Typically 20 

         they stop learning at about third grade.  They may know 21 

         basically how to read.  Many of them don't know how to add 22 

         and subtract.  If it's a surprise to you that seven plus 23 

         four equals 11 every time, you're not going to be able to 24 

         pass algebra.  So here's what we do.  We put them in 25 
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         algebra.  There's no choice.  They fail algebra.  What do we 1 

         do then?  We put them in geometry.  They fail geometry.  2 

         Many of these kids don't even understand that they failed 3 

         algebra.  They can't pass.  If they can't pass algebra, they 4 

         sure as heck can't pass Algebra II.   5 

                      Before I was a teacher I was an engineer.  Nobody 6 

         ever anymore divides one equation by another.  It doesn't 7 

         get done.  If you want to do that, you use a program.  You 8 

         use a computer program.  All of the things we're teaching 9 

         kids that we're saying, "You have to learn this," the high 10 

         school teachers don't know it.  They never did it.  The only 11 

         people in high school who know how to do it are the math 12 

         teachers.  And it's an anachronism.  When they go to 13 

         college, they are not able to go into those classes, because 14 

         those classes require that you know how to do things on the 15 

         computer.  My son who got AP calculus, he went to Grand 16 

         Valley.  And I said, "When you go to Grand Valley, you must 17 

         take calculus."  He said, "I've already got AP calc."  I 18 

         said, "I don't care.  You're going to take calculus, because 19 

         they're going to teach you how to do the second part.  20 

         Because it's all done on the computer."  And he said he had 21 

         friends who did better than he did, because I can't remember 22 

         what number he got, but they got a higher number than he did 23 

         on the AP.  And they took calculus second semester and they 24 

         failed it because they did not know that all calculus now is 25 
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         done on the computer.   1 

                      We are teaching stuff which was good 20 years ago. 2 

         Okay.  I know it.  Man, I can teach it.  It is completely 3 

         useless for these kids, and we made it a state requirement.  4 

         Okay.  Kids that I have have no prospect of passing Algebra 5 

         II.  Of course, I can lie.  Okay.  Not a problem, because I 6 

         want them to get a high school diploma.  Because in this 7 

         country it's all or nothing.  You get a high school diploma 8 

         or you don't.  I don't care if you're aces.  I don't care if 9 

         you wrote a novel by the time you were 18.  If you can't 10 

         pass Algebra II, we're not giving you a high school diploma.  11 

         A high school diploma is like the lowest thing that says you 12 

         can do something.  This is not fair to almost all the kids I 13 

         have.   14 

                      We're talking about relevancy, lovely projects, 15 

         you know, lovely programs.  We go to KCTC.  My high school 16 

         doesn't have a machine shop.  My understanding is those were 17 

         all taken out and they were going to KCTC.  I just got a 18 

         $5,000 grant Toolbox for Teachers.  We're putting in a 19 

         garden outside Cental High School.  I had kids who showed up 20 

         every day, worked their butts off for eight hours, had a 21 

         fantastic time.  I find out, "Oh, no.  This kid's special 22 

         ed."  I go, "What do you mean he's special ed?  He's 23 

         fantastic.  He's leading the team and he's doing all this."  24 

         "No; no.  Can't pass basic skills.  Come and get him in 25 
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         KCTC."  So I'm working with my friend over there.  "No, he 1 

         can't go to KCTC because he didn't pass the academic stuff."  2 

         Well, he didn't pass the academic stuff because that's not 3 

         what he liked.  If you get a list, then he'll pass the 4 

         academic stuff.  But we can't do that, because his 5 

         performance is poor.   6 

                      So it's great to have all these programs, but my 7 

         kids who came in with third grade math skills and third 8 

         grade reading skills won't qualify.  And they're not stupid.  9 

         They understand that if you're 16 years old and you're in 10 

         high school and you have less than 60 credits you're not 11 

         going to graduate, so they drop out.  My daughter who's not, 12 

         you know, the best daughter in the world -- okay -- we're 13 

         doing better now.  She hung out at Skeletone, she hung out 14 

         at the coffeehouses downtown.  She brings them back.  And 15 

         sometimes they're pretty horrified to find that, when they 16 

         come back, there's the math teacher.  And they think they're 17 

         going to be in trouble with me.  No.  Okay.  We pay for them 18 

         to take their GED.  And my understanding not being from this 19 

         culture is that the GED -- I don't care whether you say it's 20 

         the same or not and the state cannot count it all you like, 21 

         I thought that it was like a legal requirement that people 22 

         have to count the GED just like a high school diploma.  It's 23 

         an equivalency and it's from the federal government.  They 24 

         can go to college with a GED, whatever else.  When you're 25 
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         hiring people, you go a GED is equivalent to high school 1 

         diploma.  You've got to consider that.  Okay.  So for 70 2 

         bucks we can move them on through, not a problem.  And so 3 

         they can come to me and go, "All right.  We have a problem 4 

         with the math part.  We can do that."  And the math part, by 5 

         the way, doesn't include Algebra II.  There are a lot of 6 

         kids that I advise at 17, "Go take the GED, because they're 7 

         not going to let you graduate from here."  Okay. 8 

                      I don't know what to say to kids who are going, 9 

         "I'm going to go on and go to college."  Lots of kids I know 10 

         go on to college.  Of course, my kids are going on to 11 

         college.  Hey, I'm a middle class white person.  What can I 12 

         say.  Are we saying to kids that the only reason to finish 13 

         high school is for college?  Because I'll tell you what, if 14 

         you hate high school and you say, "Oh, if you don't finish 15 

         high school, you can't go to college," I have a younger 16 

         sister who said, "I don't want to go to college.  I quit 17 

         now."  Because unless you say to people is there's another 18 

         reason for getting a high school diploma, I've got to go,  19 

         "Why do I bother?"   20 

                      The last thing that I hear because I wasn't here, 21 

         I'm not part of the culture really, is that you used to 22 

         offer free driver's ed.  And a lot of kids stayed in high 23 

         school to get driver's ed.  And we don't do that anymore, 24 

         because it was too expensive.  I don't know how expensive 25 
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         you think it is to have kids drop out, but you might want to 1 

         consider the economics of providing driver's ed so that 2 

         people will stay in school 'til they're 16 and it gives them 3 

         something that everyone gets to do.  Because I can assure 4 

         you that not everyone gets to take shop, not everyone gets 5 

         to do hands-on activities, and not everyone's going to 6 

         graduate if we require things that maybe 5 percent of the 7 

         population can do right now.  Thank you very much. 8 

                      MR. PRATT:  Next we have Lynn Heemstra. 9 

                      MS. HEEMSTRA:  Thanks very much for the 10 

         opportunity to give testimony.  My name is Lynn Heemstra, 11 

         and I'm executive director of Our Community's Children, 12 

         which is a public-private partnership with the City of Grand 13 

         Rapids, Grand Rapids Public Schools and other community 14 

         partners.  And the office exists to improve the lives of 15 

         children and youth through policy, through partnerships and 16 

         through innovative programs for youth.  We've advocated 17 

         strongly for the importance of after school programs; that 18 

         they're available for young people where they can get 19 

         tutoring support and skilled development during the critical 20 

         hours of 3:00 to 6:00.  As well we've been intentional in 21 

         our approach to providing leadership opportunities for young 22 

         people so that they have a voice on policy issues that are 23 

         of concern to them.   24 

                      We have the Mayor's Youth Council and we have just 25 
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         recently put into place a Grand Rapids Youth Commission 1 

         where we had over 114 applicants for 25 positions.  And it 2 

         is through those interviews that I'm here tonight, because I 3 

         was inspired and moved by what these young people had to 4 

         say.  And what they had to say, you know, creates for me the 5 

         key point that I want to say to you tonight that, as we look 6 

         at dropout prevention, it is critically important that we 7 

         involve young people in the policy development, because they 8 

         truly know what they need in order to succeed.  No question 9 

         about it.   10 

                      I just want to share a few quotes that I've heard 11 

         over the past couple of weeks and through the forums that 12 

         we've had.  We've had over 400 young people involved in 13 

         neighborhood forums and leadership.  Quote, unquote, from 14 

         Sabian (phonetic), age 15, "We need caring adults in our 15 

         lives to provide guidance and support."  Debian (phonetic) 16 

         says, "Classroom sizes are too big.  If you don't understand 17 

         something, there's no one around to help you out.  The more 18 

         you get behind, the worse it gets until finally it just 19 

         doesn't make sense anymore to show up."  Stephanie says, 20 

         "Our parents have to stop acting like they're our friends 21 

         and start being parents.  They're out at all hours of the 22 

         night.  They swear, they use drugs, and then they expect us 23 

         to somehow act differently."  Artasia (phonetic) says, 24 

         "There's too much bullying going on that is not taken 25 
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         seriously by adults."  And Kathryn says, "We need positive 1 

         influential role models in our lives and safe and fun 2 

         programs to go after school." 3 

                      The themes are consistent.  Our children need 4 

         adults in their lives to guide and direct them.  The 5 

         solutions are there waiting for us to act.  We need to 6 

         invest in youth insuring that there are enough school 7 

         counselors, smaller class sizes, one to 20 or less, give 8 

         youth meaningful experiences to contribute in their 9 

         community and on policy issues, and assist families in 10 

         parenting.  Every child should have a school to work to 11 

         college career plan that drives resources and adult support 12 

         so that that child can accomplish his or her goals.   13 

                      When we as a community prioritize children and put 14 

         their needs first above all else, we will no longer see a 15 

         high dropout rate.  When we work together toward defining 16 

         outcomes for youth, we will see young people productive and 17 

         engaged ready for college, work and life.  Thank you very 18 

         much. 19 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay. Richard Laing. 20 

                      MR. LAING:  Thank you.  I'm Dick Laing.  I'm a 21 

         financial consultant with Oppenheimer in Flint.  I'm here 22 

         representing Michigan Tech up at Houghton.  How many people 23 
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         here are familiar with old Civilian Conservation Corps from 1 

         the 1930's?  Okay.  A few.  In the 1980's Governor Blanchard 2 

         reestablished that program, and it ran for awhile.  When 3 

         Governor Engler came in the state was hard up for money.  4 

         The program got cancelled.  But we kept pushing the program, 5 

         kept lobbying for it.  It was reestablished in the mid 90's.  6 

         The program ran for a few years, but was again cancelled 7 

         primarily because the DNR was in charge and they didn't 8 

         really like the program.  9 

                      If you look at the business plan -- and I have a 10 

         hard copy of the business plan here.  I'd be more than happy 11 

         to give you a copy.  We have a book on the subject called 12 

         Proud to Work; be glad to give you a copy of that if you 13 

         give me your business card.  I'd be glad to help you with 14 

         that.  I know the hour is late, so I'll hold my comments.  15 

         Thank you. 16 

                      MR. PRATT:  Okay.  We've got three to go.  Eugenia 17 

         Marev (phonetic)? 18 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  She left. 19 

                      MR. PRATT:  She did?  Okay.  Sally Smith? 20 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  She left. 21 

                      MR. PRATT:  We have one left.  Mary Copeland. 22 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I think she was sitting 23 

         here. 24 

                      MR. PRATT:  That is all the cards I have.  So we 25 
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         greatly appreciate your time this evening.  Sorry we ran 1 

         about a half hour long, but we think this was a very good -- 2 

         sure.  Yes.   3 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Can I just ask a quick 4 

         question? 5 

                      MR. PRATT:  Sure. 6 

                      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  How do we actively define 7 

         the true scope of dropouts? 8 

                      MR. PRATT:  I think that's one of the things that 9 

         as we do the ten hearings around the state we're hoping to 10 

         get more into.  But I know that one of the pieces of the 11 

         work this coalition's doing we are going to be doing some 12 

         polling and some research of parents, of teachers, of 13 

         students to better ascertain that.  And the other piece that 14 

         is, of course, a problem in all of this is just the strict 15 

         number of figuring out exactly how many dropouts there are, 16 

         because we do have the issue of simply narrowing down that 17 

         number.  So I think those are things that are certainly on 18 

         the docket as we go through these hearings across the state.  19 

         Again, there are nine more of these between now and October.  20 

         And one of the things that we'll be discussing certainly 21 

         are, again, addressing the scope.  If anybody --  22 

                      MS. SALTERS:  I think the -- I've got a playground 23 

         voice.  You can hear me.  The state department I know -- and 24 

         we may want to talk more on this -- is looking for -- 25 
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         looking at the whole definition of dropouts and what really 1 

         should be included in that.  As you know, right now dropouts 2 

         are considered those that do not graduate in a four-year 3 

         window.  That's fine for most students, but to penalize and 4 

         say that you're a dropout if it took you five is kind of 5 

         ludicrous.  Okay?  So they are looking at things like that.  6 

         They are looking at the fact that sometimes schools don't 7 

         have a real good handle on student A leaves, shows up in B 8 

         district that may be outside of the state or wherever.  And 9 

         you don't get that information back, so it's considered a 10 

         dropout.  So they're really looking to define that so that 11 

         we're sure that the numbers that we're getting from each of 12 

         the schools is based on the same set of standards.  So I 13 

         think that will go a long way to telling us what are our 14 

         true numbers.   15 

                      But for me if it's 20,000 students a year or it's 16 

         10,000 students a year or it's 2500 students a year, it is 17 

         unacceptable in our country.  And we all need to be working 18 

         toward doing something about it. 19 

                      MR. PRATT:  I guess at this point if any of the 20 

         other panelists had something to add real quickly, otherwise 21 

         I think we're pretty much set.  Thank you all so much for 22 

         coming today.  Again, we will be continuing this hearings 23 

         all over the state.  And outside there was flyers about the 24 

         October 20th Dropout Prevention Leadership Summit in Lansing 25 
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         where the findings of these hearings will be presented to 1 

         the public and the legislature.  So thank you very much for 2 

         your time this evening.  We appreciate it. 3 

   4 

                                        -0-0-0- 5 
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